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pSivida Limited announced recently the acquisition of private US drug delivery
company Control Delivery Systems Inc. (“CDS™). How does the acquisition fit
with your strategy to commercialise the BioSilicon™ platform technology?

MD Gavin Rezos

For over 12 months, we were looking for a US based private company with state-
of-the-art facilities in the US, staff with strong clinical, regulatory and
development experience in the drug delivery area and with experience with the
FDA. We wanted to increase our resources o we could speed up the development
of our BioSilicon™ platform in the US, the world’s largest market, both in terms
of healthcare and investment. CDS fitted the bill perfectly, CDS iz revenue-
generating, has a valuable market for its products and has technologies we can
combine with ours to potentially create next generation smart ophthalmology
products,

Many large pharmaceutical companies are developing drugs for the back of the
eye, given growing markets in that area. Getting the drug to the site and keeping it
there 1s the problem that CDS has overcome. CDS has developed the only
sustained release drug delivery products ever approved by the FDA for the back of
the eye.

corporatefile.com.au
What are CDS’ products and R&D expertise?
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CDS is a specialist drug delivery company focused on ophthalmology. using the
AEON™ technology - a drug delivery implantable system with controlled delivery
over months to vears and currently used in two of CDS’ products already being
marketed by Bausch & Lomb: Retisert ™ and Vitrasert”. CDS has a third product,
Medidur™ which has just entered Phase 11T clinical trials in collaboration with
US-based Alimera Sciences which we expect will be filed for registration with the
FDA in 2008.

Retisert™ is a drug implant for the treatment of uveitis, a debilitating auto-
immune condition which mainly manifests itself as an inflammation at the back of
the eye that can lead to sudden or gradual vision loss. An estimated 800,000
people worldwide, including 173,000 people in the US, have this condition. This
produet has Orphan Drug status and has become commercially available in the last
month or so. This product will have an average selling price of 1TS$18.250 for a
30-month treatment. Furthermore. in a recent announcement by Bausch & Lomb,
Retisert ™ was approved for Tull US Medicare rebate providing affordability to the
vast majority of US sufferers of uveitis.

Vitrasert” is a drug implant for AIDS-related Cytomegalovirus (CMV) retinitis, a
blinding condition in immune-compromised patients, V' itrasert”™ is FDA-approved,
commercially available and has been generating historical revenues for CDS,

Medidur™, essentially a second generation product of Retisert ™ and is currently
undergoing Phase III clinical development. Medidur™ is injectable in an office
rather than surgical procedure and targets Diabetic Macular Edema (DME). a
leading cause of vision loss for people under the age of 65. DME is a common
complication of diabetic retinopathy and is caused by fluid build-up in the central
vision portion of the retina. Retinal blood vessels in a diabetic’s eyes deteriorate
and leak. causing retinal swelling. There are over 600,000 treatable cases of DME
in the US every year,

In addition, CDS has two products in Phase L essentially combining active drugs
with a slow-release delivery system. In each case, we can see opportunitics for
BioSilicon™ to further enhance these products.

In addition, CDS has demonstrated significant product development capability.
The first product V itrasert”, has an eight-month duration and is surgically inserted
into the back of the cye through a 5-6mm insertion. The second product Retisert ™
has a 30-month duration and is inseried through a 3-4mm insertion. Mcdidurm,
which is in Phase III trials. has a duration of up to three years and is inserted in an
office procedure — i.e. no surgery required.

corporatefile.com.au
What opportunities do you see in combining BioSilicon™ with CDS’ technology?

MD Gavin Rezos
The future of drmg delivery is at the nanoscale and opens up enormous and
valuable opportunities. Whoever gets there will need great technology. areas of



expertise and a strong development track record. The combination of pSivida and
CDS provides all of these necessary ingredients.

BioSilicon™ is a platform technology with a range of applications mainly in our
core area of drug delivery, but also in diagnosties, tissue engineering, wound
management and orthopaedics. We aim to combine our BioSilicon™ technology
with ophthalmology drug delivery by using CDS’ core focus and expertise in
ophthalmology. considered to be one of the fastest growing areas in the US
pharmaceutical industry. There is the potential to create ophthalmology products
with enhanced delivery, biodegradability. optical and intelligent (MEMS)
applications utilising the propertics of BioSilicon ™. CDS’ experience  in
development will also help us to get BioSilicon™ products approved more rapidly.

corporatefile.com.au
How was the business valued and how will the acquisition be funded?

MD Gavin Rezos

The acquisition will be funded by the issue of 16 million pSivida American
Depository Receipts (ADRs) to CDS stockholders, representing about 40 percent
of the combined company.

The acquired business was valued by US investment bank advisors BIO-IB LLC in
MNew York and UBS Investment Bank acting for CDS on the basis of a number of
factors: one being the historical financing, with a round of US$335 million raised in
August 2000 led by Essex Woodlands and Morgan Stanley. The value of CDS”
products had significantly improved since entering the market. We also valued the
business on the discounted future cash flows of Retisert ™ royalties, to a lesser
extent some of the existing value of V itrasert” and more heavily discounted future
cash flows of Medidur™ for which we expect to secure FDA registration by 2008
for a substantial market. In addition, we also looked at comparable companies”
values and comparable transactions in the biotech market.

corporatefile.com.au
What can you tell us about CDS” revenue stream, subject to the confidentiality you
have in place?

MD Gavin Rezos

CDS’ revenues to date have been generated mainly from Vitrasert”. CDS$’
unaudited accounts showed carnings in excess of USS8 million (just over AS11
million) as at 30 June 2005. The next financial year will include royalties from the
recently launched Retisert™ which has a significant target market in uveitis with
analyst views for that market ranging in excess of US$100 million per annum.

We are not permitted to disclose the size of the royalties payable, but they are
clearly significant to us and our valuation of CDS.

corporatefile.com.au
What will be the ownership structure of the acquired business and what eserow

arrangements are in place?



MD Gavin Rezos

Ownership in the combined company will be split 60 percent pSivida shareholders
and 40 percent CDS sharcholders. All CDS” sharcholders will be escrowed for six
months and some of its management will be escrowed for nine months. pSivida’s
directors have agreed to a voluntary six-month escrow,

corporatefile.com.au
What attracted CDS to pSivida and what commitment will its management make
to the future of the combined group?

MD Gavin Rezos

CDS" management is fully committed and very excited about the ability to
coniribute their UD development and regulatory experience to help us more
quickly advance our BioSilicon™ products in the US, This opportunity gives
CDS’ sharcholders a public listing and access to a broad technology to hoth
complement and supplement CDS" ophthalmology technology by combining
BioSilicon™ for next generation products to keep them at the leading edge in
ophthalmology products,

corporatefile.com.au
Does this acquisition fulfill your aim of establishing a US base and if so, why has
that been a priority for pSivida?

MD Gavin Rezos

It does fulfill our aim and is an excellent opportunity for both us and CDS. It's a
priority because the US has the world’s largest healthcare market and investment
community and it is our aim to accelerate the development of our BioSilicon™
technology in the US.

We've also been looking to do a deal like this for the last 12 months to help
accelerate our ongoing business development discussions with big pharma in the
US. It’s better for us to have people on the ground who are engaged in daily
discussions instead of traveling from our Australian or UK offices once every
three weeks which slows down the process. It would take a long time and
significant cash expenditure to organically assemble a team of the quality of CDS
with excellent facilities in a biotech hub such as Boston,

corporatefile.com.au

What will be the management structure of pSivida post-acquisition and to what
extent might your role change? What do both your recently appointed US-based
non-executive directors bring to the board?

MD Gavin Rezos

Dr. Paul Ashton, CDS” President and CEO, will join us as Chief Operating Officer
and will elfectively become Executive Director of Strategy for the combined
entity. My role will remain CEO of the combined entity.

In June. we appointed two US-based Non-executive Directors: David Mazzo, the
CEO of Chugai Pharma USA, a division of Roche, and Mike Rogers, the CFO of
Indevus Pharmaceuticals. David Mazzo is highly ecxperienced in the arca of
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business development, business relations with pharmaceutical companies and has
strong US and Japanese connections. He helps us in the network side of business
development and in our business negotiations. Mike Rogers is also highly regarded
in Boston, particularly in the area of comporate finance. We are very pleased to
have both these highly experienced individuals on our board,

Over time. we’d look to bring in a global CEO who would be based in Boston and
would have a strong biotech industry background as well as being well known to
Wall Street. The new CEOQ would be focused on taking this company from a
AS%330 million {USS250 million) to over AS1 billion (US$750 million) market
cap. [ will stay with the company as a dircetor and manage the Australian side of
the business.

Our UK subsidiary pSiMedica will continue to be run by our Chairman Dr. Roger
Brimblecombe, formerly the Chairman of Smith Kline and French Research. Our
Singapore subsidiary pSiOncology is still managed through pSiMedica, as they
focus on the development of our Brachy Sil™ product and deal with our ongoing
elinical trials in liver cancer. Our new Phase [la clinical trial for panereatic cancer
will commence and be managed in the UK by pSiMedica,

corporatefile.com.au
What impact will the acquisition have on your cash burn?

MD Gavin Rezos

We recently announced an additional A320 million (US$15 million) funding by
way of a three year. 8 percent coupon, convertible note from large New York
based institutional investor, Castlerigg Investments. The convertible note can be
converted at a fixed price into NASDAQ listed ADRs. Following the acquisition,
this additional funding lifts our cash position to over AS$30 million (US522.5
million) with a monthly cash bum of US$900,000 before taking into account
extraordinary costs associated with the acquisition transaction or merger cost
savings. This historical cash bum also included the completion of additional
eleanrooms in Braunschweig, Germany, and the UK, as well as some additional
manufacturing capacity in relation to our research on BioSilicon™,

We have sufficient cash for our Phase Ila trials on pancreatic cancer, Phase IIb
trials on liver cancer and ongoing work with Cirrus Pharmaceuticals to develop
our own products involving BioSilicon™ drug delivery of generic compounds.

CDS is to an extent self-funding through its royalty based revenues and our
evaluation work with our big pharma collaborator is being funded by that big
pharma. In addition. we expeet to begin receiving licensing fees for BioSilicon™
later this year, which should augment the cash we retain,

corporatefile.com.au
Thank you Gavin.




To read previous pSivida Limited Open Briefings, or 1o receive future Open
Briefings by email, please visit www.corporatefile.com.au.

For more information about pSivida Limited, view www.psivida.com.au or call

Brian Leedman, Investor Relations Manager on +(61-8) 9327 8920,

PSIVIDA DISCLATMER: This announcement does not constitute an offer of any secunties for
sale or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities, Any securities offered may not be or have
not been registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and may not be offered or
sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from registration
requirements.”

This document contains forward-looking statements that imvolve risks and uncertainties. Although
we believe that the expeetations reflected m such forward-looking statements are reasonable at this
time, we can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be comrect Given these
uncertamties, reacders are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements. Actual results could differ materially from these anticipated in these forward-looking
statements due to many important factors ncluding: our failure to develop applications for
BioSilicon™ due to regulatory, scientific or other issues, our inability to negotiate and consummate
the proposed acquisition, our mability to successfully integrate CDS’s operations and employees;
the failure of CD'S's products to achieve expected revenues and the combined entity’s inability to
develop existing or proposed products. Other reasons are contamned in cautionary statements in the
Registration Statement on Form 20-F filed with the U5, Securities and Exchange Commission,
including, without limitation, under Item 3.1, "Risk Factors” therem. We do not undertake to
update any oral or written forward-looking statements that may be made by or on behalf of pSivida.

CORPORATE FILE DISCLAIMER: Corporate File Pty Ltd has taken reasonable care in
publishing the information contained in this Cpen Briefing®. It is information given in a summary
form and does not purport to be complete. The information contained is not intended to be wsed as
the basis for making any investment decision and you are solely responsible for any 1se you choose
to make of the information. We strongly advise that vou seek independent professional advice
before making any imvestment decisions. Corperate File Pty Ltd is not responsible for any
consequences of the use you make of the information, meluding any loss or damage you or a third
party mught suffer as a result of that use.
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pSivida Limited is an Australian public company that is committed to the biomedical
nanotechnolegy sector and listed on NASDAQ (PSDV), the Australian Stock Exchange (PSD)
and Germany on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (PS1). pSivida shares also trade in the United
Kingdom on the OFEX International Market Service under the ticker symbol (IM3), pSivida is
a member of the NASDAQ Health Care Index and the Merrill Lynch Manotechnology |ndex.

'OpSivida

‘a global bio-nanotech company’

Our focus is the development and commercialisation of nano-struclured porous
silicon (BloSilicon™) Tor mulliple polential applicalions in human and animal
healthcare through our wholly owned subsidiaries, pSiMedica Limited (LK),

pSiOncology Pty Lid (Singapore) and AION Diagnostics Limited (Australia).
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Dear Shareholder

During the past year there have beon substantial and exciting
developments In your Company that continue to lay the

foundations for fulure growth.

Most notable of these developments include the successful
completion of Fhase 1la Clinical Trials In Singapore; the
commencement of a top five Global Pharmaceutical Company
evaluation of BloSilicon™; the NASDAQ listing in January; the
acqusition of the remaining shares in pSiMedica and the granting
of our first patents for China and Korea,

These events hawe taken pl

aca against the backdrop of strong
imvestor market interest in pSivida and our BioSilicon™ technology
platform in particular. This has been highlighted by wyour
Company’s inclusion In the Merrill Lynch Manotechnology Index
and more recently, the NASDAG Health Cae Index.

Our core technical activities are directed towards the successiul

commercialisation of BloSilicon™ in a variely of drug delivery and

diagnostic products and coupled with our corporate |nitiatives

hava positionad us to better dellver value to shareholders over the
A *es

longer term. Our ability to commercialise BioSilicon
has been further strengthened through the appointment of Dr Mark

technology

Parry-Blllings as the new Research & Development Director at our
pSiMedica operations in the UK,

Drug delivery evaluation of BioSilicon™ by a top five Global
Pharmaceutical Company continues with the pharmaceutical
company funding the direct cost of the programme. In the initial
phase, pSivida met the criteria for the first compound to be
deliverad, triggering further evaluation of BloSilicon™ formulations
of the compound and also commencement of evaluation on a
second compound.

In & post financial year development, manufacturing facilities for
pSivida's lead product BrachySi™ have been completed in
Ing partner AEA Tachnology QSA
Auriga Medical. This facility completes the final process in the

Germany wilth our manufact

manufacture of BrachySi™ for future clinical and commercial use,
and represents the crucial fimal stage In establishing the
manufacturing and supply infrastructure to support BrachySi™ as
It advances through clinical trials towards the market.



chnologies »

The completion of Phase lla clinical Lrials produced excellent
resulls thal demonstrated that BrachySil™ given intra-lumorally |s
safe, well tolerated and effective in reducing tumors in palients
with advanced, inoperable liver cancer, Expanded Phase Ilb trials
will commence in the second half of 2006, together with the
commeancement of Phase 1la trials for the treatment of inoperable

|.ldlll..'l+:d|IIZ cancer,

We continue our policy of forming collaboralions with academic and
Industrial organisations o broaden our knowledge of the potential
uses of our technology platform,  During the year we hawe
announced a number of new collaborations Including a non
sxcusive agreement with ITOCHU Corporation for the development
and commercialisstion of BinSilicon™ in Japan and Asia and food
applications. We also commissioned the PureTech group in the
Uniled Stales lo explore possible collaboralive arrangements in non
core areas including orthopedics, wound healing and tissue repair,

Maore recently, pSivida Signed an agreement with Cirrus
Pharmaceuticals in the United States to accelerate and expand
development of a number of specific drug candidates formulated
in BioSilicon™ to expand a BioSilicon™ product pipeling of
reformulated drugs. Further details are provided in this
Annual Repart.

A significant post balance date event was the US$104 million
[AU$139 million) acquisilion of Conlrolled Delivery Syslems, a
private Linited States drug delivery company located in the Boston,
Massachusetts area. This acqulsition is an excellent opportunity
for pSivida to capitalize on the combination of complementary
technologies and skills, The diversifiad product portfolio and
developmant capabilities of the combined company prasent valua
creating opportunities, reducing our overall risk profile whilst
generating significant curment and near-tenm revenue.

biomateria

> platform technologi

pplications

For me, parlicular highlighls of the year were Lhe appointments of
Dr David Mazzo and Mr Michael Rogers Lo the pSivida Board. Both
gentlemen bring the credertials and experience in the LUnited
States market that will greatly assist pSivida as it makes the
transition to operations there in the near future. As we expand our
opcratiens in this, the world's largest healthcare market, existing
sharehilders will benelil through [he allraction of an increasing

number of United Stales investors.

Following capital raisings in the previous year and a more recent
Private Equity Placement in the United States, your company
remains In a strong cash position as we progress our pre-clinical
and clinical development projects and support a variety of

callabaorative venluras

Your Board believes thal the comblination of our technical
advances and the important corporate and financial improvements
which have been made should result in considerable growth in
your Company during the current year.

Finally, | thank my lellow Direclors, the Company™s managemenl
and statt and all shareholders for their stmong and ongoing support,

q T " _
Wl AN A

Dr Roger Brimblecombe PhD, OSc, FRCPath, FIBiol

Chairman

pilwids limited |
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lew of Operatio

The past year has proven to be anocther period of substantial development for the Company.
Following the acquisition of the remaining shares in pSiMedica, the Company began an evaluation of

BioSilicon™ for drug delivery with a top five Global Pharmaceutical Company and completed the
Phase lla clinical trial on our lead product BrachySil™. The programme for the current year is equally
exciting as the Company commences Phase [Ib clinical trials for BrachySil™ for the treatment of liver
cancer and Phase lla trials for the treatment of pancreatic cancer,

The key Fhase lla clinical frials for BrachySil™ as a potential new
brachytherapy treatment for inoperable Iver cancer conducted at
Singapore General Hospltal has demaonstrated that BrachySil™ is
safe and well tolerated, Furthermaore, significant tumour regression
was achieved with a maximum regression of 100% In some smaller
tumaours treated, as determined by CT scanning.

This trial has established four Key findings in relation to BrachySil™,:
SAFETY - No product related adverse events
Unlike other liver brachytherapy approaches that involve

delivery via the hepatic artery and, in some cases, result in
radioactivity becoming associated with healthy tlssue,
BrachySI™ |s administe

ed directly into tumours targeting
radioactivity to the tumour itself.

EFFICACY — Treated tumours demonstrate significant tumour
regression

mplantation of tumours with BrachySi™ has resulted in
tumouwricidal activity around the implantation site. Although
the primary objective of the study was 1o determine the safely
profile of BrachySil™, CT scan analysis of tumours at the time
of treafment and three and six months later demonsirates
significant tumour ragression in targeted lasions.

SPECIFICITY - Retention of radicactivity in the tumour
A kgy finding Is that the radicactive 22P- BioSilicon™
microparticles remain in the tumour with no or insignificant

delectabla radicactive leakage into the bloodstream.

EASE OF APPLICATION - Practical and rapid treatment of
tumours with ultrasound and CT guidance

The procedure has been shown to be straightforward and
accurate for the treatment of tumours in a routine clinical
setting.

page 04 pSiwlda imited | annual reper 2005

The current brachytherapy market s growing and is estimated to
be worth approximataly US3600 million per year, BrachySil™ has
the potential to significantly expand the current market slze
through application to other cancers. The procedure is undertaken
without surgery under local anaesthetic and patients are
discharged the following day.

It is expected that the first marketing approval for BrachySiI™ will
be flled during 2007, initially for Inoperable primary liver cancer
and thereafter for the treatment of a wider variely of cancers
involving solld tumours, such as pancreatic cancer, Pancreatic
cancer Is ona of the most prevalent cancers with over 232,000
new cases on a global basls per annum {Globocan 2002 statistlcs)
and appraximately 50% of new cases o

ceumring in the developed
world, With an average five year survival of 4%, pancreatic cancer
represents a significant unmet clinical need.

BrachySI™ Is expected to follow a ‘device-based” regulatory route
meaning a potentially shorfer -'!ﬂ'Jﬂl-'lF-I'.'lf-'ll'li ana Iﬂ:.,"l'it-‘ai:t'l"l
timeframe,

Pabent baing macied with BrachySiM™



Cleanroom facifty in Germarny.

In a szignificant post balance development, pSividas agreement

with AEA Technology-QSA for the com

arcial manufacture of
BrachySi™ has resulted in the completien of a state-of-the-ar

cleanroom facility in Braunschweig, Germany.

This cGMP operation will fulfil the final process in the
manufacture of BrachySil™ for future clinical and commercial uss,
and represents the crucial stage in establishing the manufaciuring
and supply infrastructure to support BrachySil™ as it advances
thraugh clinical trizls towards the markel.

pSivida became truly global this year with a listing on NASDAQ's

National Market, becoming one of only eleven Australian

companies listed on one of the world's premier markats. The

Amearican Depesitary Receipts ("ADR™) programme has grown

steadily since the lanuary listing with the number of ADR=s almost

tripling from May to the and of August.

In a post balance development, pSivida further strengthened its
balance sheet with the raising of AF5.7 million via the private
placement of 665,000 ADRs to predominantly US investors at
USE6,50 each,
pSivida's expansion into the United States, the world's |argest

The ADR release further assists funding for

healthcare and financial market

pSivida ramains in a strong cagh position for what is an important
stage of i1s development and provides the Company with the
ability to progress its preclinical and clinical development
prajects and to support & variety of collaborative ventures.

In March, pSivida received a significant profile boost from its
nclusion in tha Marrill Lynch Nanotechnology Index. The criteria
for inclusion in the Merrill Lynch Nanotechnology Index are
companies (nm which nanotechnology initigtives represenl a
significant component of their future business strategy and must

be listed on NASDACL

In July 2005, pSivida was made a founding member of the
NASDAL Heslth Care Index in nition of the Company's
growing visibility in the United States, The NASDAQ Health Care
Index is & market value weighted index that contains NASDAQ

isted companies classified according to the FTSE Gilobal
Classification System, as “Health”

“Biotechnology™.

“Pharmaceutical” or

pSivida's research and development work was recognisad in July
2004 when it received tha prastigious Frost & Sullivan Excellance
n Research Award for its work in the area of nanomedicing

In August 2004, pSivida incorporated AION Diagnostics Limited
n Australia 1o develop disgnostic applications for BioSilicon™ and
provided seed funding through an investment of A$1.2 million,

AION Diagnostics has since been developing the next ganeration

of disgnostic tools that may give doctors the ability to detect
disease a1 the molecular level belore symploms appear, giving the

patient the best chance of completa recovery.

Beth Qinetid and pSivida act & strategic partners of AION

Diagnostics which has licensed diagnostic and sensor applications

of the BicSilicon™ platform technology. AION Diagnostics will
also ook to develop products through strategic collaborations with
universities, research institutions and industry partners and seak

grant funding in Ausiralia and the United States.

piivida limited | annval report 2005




While continuing to zlop its existing collaborative partnerships,
the Company entered into a number of new arangamants during
the past year. A summary of the Company’s more significant
collaborative partnerships is provided on page B,

Top Five Global Pharma

The evaluation of selected compounds from an undisclosed top
five Global Pharmaceutical Company has progressed successiully,
The collaboration agreement covers a staged evaluation of the
pharmaceutical company's proprietary compounds In pSivida's
porous silicon, controlled release platform (BioSilicon™). The
Initial stage of the plannad 12 month programme has concluded,
meeting the agreed technical success criteria, and In fturn
triggering the next payment to pSivida under the terms of the
ageement.

ITOCHU Corporation — Japan, Asia and Food Technology

A nmon-exclusive agreement was signed with |TOCHU Corporation
for the dewelopment and commercialisation of BioSilicon™ in
Japan and Asia and food applications. ITOCHU, one of the world's
largest carporations is engaged In development of commercial
opportunities and products for BioSillcon™ In Japan and other
significant markets in Asia. ITOCHU also has significant
experience and expertise in the Food Industry and is engaged in
the development and commercialisation of new products utilising
BioSilicon™ technology in the rapidly growing area of food

technology and nulraceuticals.

EPITAN - Completion of Proof of Concept Study

The in vivo study conducted at the Institute of Medical and
Veterinary Science in Adelaide, South Australia, indicated that a
single Injection of pSivida’s porous BioSilicon™ technology
successiully released MELANOTAN™ over a sustained perfod.
The gutcomea of this collaboration may lead to a second-generation
liquid-based Injectable MELANOTAN™ product.

Forschungszentrum - Porous Silicon Mirror Technology

A licensing agreement was signed with Forschungszentrum Julich
GmbH, part of Germany's largest research Institute, to acquire
rights in the use of its Porous Silicon Mirrar technology.
Combining this technology with the recently acquired BioSilicon™
diagnostics platform, AION Dlagnostics intends to examine the
development of EBioSilicon™ optical mirrors 85 an in vivo
diagnostic device, with the ability to provide early diagnosis and
continual monitoring of patients.
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Flinders University / ARC Grant

pSivida together with the Flinders University of South Australia was
awarded an ARC |ndustry Linkage Grant. Flinders University plans
to develop a novel ophthalmic (eve) bioimplant from BloSilicon™,
The project is intended to result in biomaterials for the treatment
[ blinding diseases of the eye.
bioimplants may amellorate some common corneal diseases.,

[ul mplanted into the limbus,

University of South Australla — Evaluation of Protein & Peptide
Dalivary

pSivida entered into a reseach and development collaboration

with the University of South Australia to evaluate the potential of
the BioSilicon™ platform for the delivery of protein and peptide-
based therapeutics (or biopharmaceuticals) including antibodies,
hormones and growth factors that account for a substantial and
increasing segment of the phamaceutical market. Fromising
preliminary Investigations using EioSilicon™ have indicated its
utility for the delivery of biophamaceuticals, including its
potential for the development of new controlled release
formulations of existing marketed therapautics.

pSivida has further strengthenad |ts Intellectual Property Portfollo
with the granting of an additional 13 patents during the pasi year.

In August 2005, pSivida was granted Its fifth patent in the
important United States market which provides for the classification

of porous silicon into monodispersed parlicles with a tight size

distribution. The classification into tight sized distributions Is a key
ttribute of many micro-engineered particle products.

pSivida was also granted its first patents In China and Korea, The
first patent granted in China |s important as China has the highest
incidence of primary Iiver cancer in the world with approximately
350,000 cases in 2002, The potential lower cost of the Chinese
registration pathway and the vast need of BrachySi™ like products
make China an imporlant commercial target.

The Korean patent oovers the electronic-based properties of
BioSilicon™ In the stimulation of orthopaedic tissue repair and re-
engineering where scaffolds are required b0 support new bone
growth. The technology also has application for treatment of
fractures that do not heal, such a5 “bone non-union”. Korea (s a
Key global player In the design and manufacture of micro-
components for the electronics industry. This technology provides
the opportunity to capitalise on Korea's technology strengths as
well as the higher marging associated with healthcare products.



Biasiic

Cross sechion.

pSivida enjoys a very strong intellectual property position, with
1ted in the valuable United States and

core biomateria patents g

Eurcpean markets. Granted patents are held for each of the first

Sivida inventions that cover the broad use of BioSilic

in healthcare applications and more specifically in relation to the

core focus of specialised drug delivery and brachytherapy.

pSivida owns all intellectual property rights in relation to
BioSilicon™ for which there are as at September 2005, 34
granted patents, 29 patent families and over 80 patent
applications. The core patent, which recognises BioSilicon™ as a
biomaterial, was granted in the United Kingdem in 2000 and the
United States in 2001. QinetiQ, as a former agency of the United
Kingdom government, under the terms of the initial Intellectual

Froperty assignment, is required to assist in the defence of any

challenge to the initial core patents.

Praducts protected by patents and patent applications owned by
pSiMedica include materials comprising bicactive, resorbable and
3t
generations of intelligent drug delivery devices, orthopaedic

are of value in the fabrication of new

biecampatible silicon t

implants and intelligent disgnostic tools.

A detailed patent portfolio is provided on page 10,

pSivida has recently appointed two nen-executive directors to its
board in Dr David J Mazzo and Mr Michael W Rogers.

Dr David J Mazzo was appointed a5 a non-executive director of the
Company, based in New Jersey, USA. He is President and CEO of
Chugai Pharma USA, part of the Roche group of companies and a

ary of Chugai Pharmaceutical Compary Limited (Japan), a
global research-based pharmaceutical compary with sales in

2001 of US$1.7 billion,

Mr Michael W Rogers was appointed as a non-executive director of

the Company, based in Massachusetts, USA. He isthe Executive

Vice-President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Indevus
Pharmaceuticals Incorporated, & biopharmaceutical company

besed in Lexington, Massachusetts which is engaged in the

acquisition, development and commercialisation of products

targeting certain medical specialty aress, including urology and

infectious diseases,

Wholly owned subsidiary AION Disgnostics Limited appointed

Dr Jorg Schreiber PhD} as a non-executive director in May 2006,

Dr Schreiber has over 20 years' experience in the diagnostics

industry, principally with Roche Diagnostics and Boehringer

Mannheim in Germa rings with him p and expertise

in the cammercialisation of world class diagnostic products.

These appaintments bring with them a wealth of knowledge and

experience which will prove invaluable as the Company grows its
presence in the United States, the world's largest healthcare and

on of Dr Mazzo and Mr

financial markel, A more detailed de

ctors’ Report on page 12.

Rogers can be found in the Dire
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> Collaborations

The Company's broader commercialisation stralegy Involves a high degree of parlnering at various lavels fo lever the expensive

g5, Non-core applications will be sold or licensed out, providing interim cash flow and allowing the Company to focus

arcialisation strategy.

TECHNOLOGY/

APPLICATION A

+ Radlotherapy product (Brachy5im)
+ Localised chematherapy product

. evaluate BioSilicor™ in certain
wu drug delivery applications

+ Evaluating BloSilicon™ as a deltvery platform for Melanotan™ and other
mielanogenesls inducing peptides it has cumently under clinkcal Investigation

. + Development of novel aphthalmic Implants of BloSilicon™

+ Delivery of biclogics

+ Parous silicon optical mimor technology which will be commercialized with
BloSilicon™ diagnostic technology

+ Blosensors for disease detection

- Examining additional manufacturing and coating solutions for BioSilicon™
+ Particle formation

- Stze definition

+ Manastructuring and stain etching

2
.
=]
:

+ Neutron bombardment, final formulation and padkaging, logistics and distribution

+ Development and commercialization opportunities for BioSilicon™
in Japan & Asia (non-exclusive)
- Food Technalogy eg; nutraceuticals using ingestible BioSilicon™

COMMERCIAL
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>ilicon

BioSilicon™ is a new, unigue and proprietary biomatenal produced from elemental silicon, one of the most abundant elements in the
earlh's crust. Its structure can be engineered o contain a “honeycomb” of pores that allows Bio3ilicon™ (o retain various drugs while
also making it biodegradable. The extent of the nanostructuring determines the size of the molecules, the dose it can hold within its
honeycomb matrix and the rate of biodegradation, enabling predictable and controlled release of its therapeutic payload. In pre-clinical
studies pSivida has shown that BioSilicon™ is both biodegradable and biocompatible.

Furthermore, Bio%ilicon™ maintains the key semicenduclor properties of silicon, is machineatble at a micro level, and also demonstrates
optical properties that provide the basis for a variety of potential devices for biodegradable and biocompatible diagnostic products,
BioSilicon™ has many properties that make it an ideal drug delivery platform:

high drug loading rates (up to 95%]

excellent control en change In release timing
{hours/daysiwee ks'months)

structural protection from dose dumping
biodegradable, biocompatible and non-toxic

safety of silicon by-products following biodegradation
(silicic acid)

micro machining can vary nano pores to accommodate
different drug sizes

conduction of charge - charge can be altered o

regulate drug delivery

BioSicon™ particles.
mt[—:l!;_.:eu:g - po‘.enllul micrachip ncorporation
and diagnostics

Controlled Releass Drugs

BloSilicon™ Drug Delivery < Brachytherapy

B Localized Chematherapy

CORE

NON-CORE

AIDN Diagrostics

Orthopedics

Wound Management

Food —4  Nutrac
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> |ntellectual Property Report

The following table provides general details relating to pSivida's patents and patent applications; it is based on information available on
21 September 05.

The Company curreéntly has thirty four granted patents, together with one application that has been accepted, and which should be granted
within the next few months.

Priority Number  Status Subject Matter

951 5956.2 Mational applications (EP, IF, CA, KR1) The claims relate to resorbable, bioactive, and biocompatible forms of
Granted (GBL, GB2, US1, US2, KR2) silicon, Further claims relate to electronic devices and composites
Diviskonal (US3) comprising bloactive silicon.,

SR0R052 6 Mational applications (CA, JF, KR, LIS) The claims ralate to resorbable and biccompatibie silicon implants for the
Granted (AU, NZ, EP1, CN1} delivery of beneficial substances to animals or humans.

Divisional (EPZ, CN2)

SR158199 Mational applications (CA, CN, HK, IF, KR} The claims ralate to the transfer of material {such as, but not limited o,
Granted (US1, AUL, AUZ, EPL, NI} genetic material) into cells using porous or polycrystalline silicon.
Divisionals (US2, EP3) The claims also specifically relate to biolistic (2lso known as microprojectile)
dalivery,
9909596.2 MNational applications The claims relate to the use of derivatised porous sillcon as a biomateria
(CA, CN, JF, KR, US) and to devices, Including electronic devices, comprising derivatised

Granted (AU, EP, NZ) parous silicon,

9924334.7 Mational applications (CA, JF, US) The claims relate to orally administrable pharmaceutical pro
Grantad (SG, AU, EP} including products com
polycrystalline silicon.

Cls,

prising electronic circultry, comprising porous or

9928511.6 Mational applications (CA, IF, US) The claims relate to an invention which Is of value In the treatment of
Granted (EP, NZ, AU, 5G) patients that have taken an overdose,

Qo29521.4 National applications (CA, EF, JP, SG) The claims relate to a mathod of fabricating hermetically sealed silicon

Granted (NZ, AU, US1) capsules sultable for drug delivery, and for the packaging of electronic
Divisional (US2) implants.

0008494.7 MNational applications (EU, JP) The claims relate to substantially monodispersad (having the same size
Grantad (US) or shape) porous sillcon particles.

Q014079.8 Mational applications (US, JP, SG, EP)  The claims relate to a silicon composite material, suitable for use in bone

Granted (AU1} repair and bone replacement, comprising sllicon and a carrier material.

Divisional (ALIZ)

0020276.2 Mational applications (US, CA, IF) The claims relate to dermatological compositions comprising porous
Granted (EP, NZ, AU} andfor polycrystalline silicon,
01043283.5 Mational applications The claims relate to products comprising silican for the treatment

(US, AU, CA, IP, EF, SG) of cancer,
Granted (NZ, SGW)

01186899 Mational applications The claims ralate to the use of silicon for the pulmonary delivery of drugs
(Us, AU, CA, JP, EP, 5G) to human or animal patients.

0120202.7 Natlonal applications (AL, JP, EF, SG) The claims relate to sweat patches, including patches comprising
Accapted (US) electronic circuitry, for the collection and detection of sweat components,

Divisional (US1)
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01306083 Mational applications The daims relate to silicon fibres or fabrics for medical use,
(K5, EF, JF, AU, 5G, CN, KR}

0212667.0 Mational applications A novel orthopaedic scaffold, and a self-assembly process for fabrication
(LIS, CA, JP, EP, AU, NI} of such a scaffold,

03022837 Mational applications {US, EF, JF, CN} The daims relate 1o the use of sillcon for boron neutron capture therapy.

03074531 International application The daims relate to the use of silicon devices, including electronic
(Al PCT states) devices, Tor the collection and assay of cancer markers

D3za483.7 International ap plication The daims relate to porous silicon compositions having high levels of
(All PCT states) loading, and to methods of loading.

D324482.9 International 2pplication The daims relate to chlorambucil/porous silicon and taxol/paraus silicon
{All PCT states) composilions for brachytherapy,

D400149.1 International application The daims relate a method of fabricating a phosphorous containing
(Al FCT states) silicon material.

D411358.5 International application The daims relate to the fabrication of a consolidated silicon particulate
{All PCT slates) producl, The method is of parlicular value in the fabricalion ol inexpensive

anodised porous silicon

041965631 International application The daims relate to a syringe having a curved flexible needle for
{All PCT states) introducing BrachySI™ into a tumour.

04206 /6.9 Priority Application The claims relate to a chronotherapeutic device,

D423383.9 Priority Application The daims relate to ductile silicon structures, and medical use of such

structures.,

0504657 8 Priority Application The claims relate to a new treatment for osteoporosis.

0508174.0 Priority Application The daims relate to Oral wgiene compositions.

0515357.2 Priority Application The daims relate to a silicon packaging material.

D515353.1 Priority Application The daims relate to the use of silicon in food products.

Mot yet known Priority Application The daims relate to an analytical device for testing body fluids.

Medos:

fa) Each inverifan group & fdentifed by the aarlfos! priorlly patent appdteation number. Lach prorily spplication fs filed at the GH Faten! Office, and hemee

the prorty numbers are GB applicalion numbers,

(b} The table shows the status of each Invention group. For example a caze will typically be flled ac a prioeity GE application, It will then go on fo be ffled

az an infernational patent applicelion. The final sleges are national filing (for example in US, Europe, efe) and grant.
(o) Tha nature of the profection provided Gy the ciaims (s given in the “Subject Matier” pat of the tebie
{d) Abbreviations are used o indlcate the states In which rational applications have been fled. These abbreviations are as follows: Al = Australla, GB = Great
Britain, CA = Canada, CN = China, EF = Eumpe, HK = Hong Kong, 1P = fapan, KR = Kores, N7 = New fealand, $G = Sing

move, IS = United States,

o) DNeisional apoiicalions are indicated by ok | % 52T, "3T ate, for axampla GEI, !'i.f;',?_. |".r-:]'I E |'",'_’_, s 1, r'-‘S.:J_, os3,
{1} Foe NS and AL appiications the fenm “accepied ™ means thal & Notice of Accefdfance has Deen recefwad. For e EF appifcations, the ferm “accaphed™
means that & Rule 51{4) EPC Communication, in which the Applicant s informed of the infenfion fo grant 8 palfent, hes been received. For US

"

applications the term “accepted” means that the Notice of Allowance has been recelved. For China the term "accepled” means that a Declsion on

Granting of Palenf Right has been issied.
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The Directors of pSivida Limited submit herewith the annual financial report of the Company for the financial vear ended 30 June 2005,

The names and details of the directors of the Company in office during the financial year and unlil the date of this report, unless otharwise

stated, are:

Dr Roger Brimblecombe,
PhD DSc, FRCPath, CBil, FIBkf

Mon-Executive Chairman

Dr Brimblecombe is a former chairman of
SmithKline and French Research Ltd. He is
currently Chairman of MVM Ltd (the venture
capital arm of the UK Medical Research
Council), Oxxon Therapeutics Ltd (UK) and
Owoion Therapeutics, Ine [US).
director of AlM-listed Tissue Scisnce
Laboratories plc  {appointed 1958},
NASDAQ-listed Wertex Pharmaceuticals,
Inc {appointed 1993}
company Vertex (Europe) Lid. He is
Consultant Editor of Orue Discovery Waord.
Dr Brimblecombe is a respected figure in
pharmaceutical and
bictechnology industries with extensive
contacts in Europe. the US and Japan.

He is a

and unlisted

tha intarnational

Dr Brimblacombe is Chaiman of pSiMedica
Limited (K] and pSiCneology Pte Limited
(Singapore).
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Mr Gavin Rezos,
LLE, BA
Managing Director

B

Mr Rezos graduated in Law from the
University of Western Australia, has been
admitted as a barrister and solicibor in
Western Australia, England and New South
Wales and practised in London in corporate
finance before joining the merchant bank
Midland Montagu in 1990 (now HSBC
nvestment Bank plc).

Mr Rezos has extensive Australian and
banking
experience across a range of industries and
n a number of geographical locations

nternational nvestment

ncluding Eurcpe, Latin America, the
Middle East and Asia. Mr Rezosis currently
principal of Viaticus Capital Ply Lid, a
specialist biotechnology venture capital and
corporate  advisory company. He was
foarmerly an Investment Banking Director of
the HSBC Group, with previous regional

roles based in London, Sydney and Dubai.

Mr Rezos is a Director of pSiMedica Limited
(UK}, pSiOncology Pte Ltd (Singapore) and
Chairman of AION Diagnostics Limited.

Mr Rezos was also a director of ASX-listed
Amity Qil Limited {now Antares Energy
Limited) during the period October 2001 to
Movernber 2004,

annual reperl 2005

Dr Roger Aston,
Phid, BS: (Hons)

Director, Strategy

Previously at the Wellcome Foundation,
Or Aston has more than 20 years of
expzrience in the pharmaceulical and
biotechnology  industries.
positions have included CEQ of Peptiech
Limited {Australia), director of Cambridge
Antibody Technology Limited (UK) and
Chairman of Cambridge Drug Discovery
Limited (UK - now BioFocus plch. Dr Aston
wzs also founder and CEO of
Technology Lid (UK) prior to its acquisition
by the Peptech Group.

His previous

Biokine

Dr Aston |s a founder and a Director of
pSiMedica Limited (UK}, CEQ of
pSidncology Pte Lt (Singapore} and a
Director of AION Diagnestics Limibed.

Dr Aston
companies Avantogen Limited (formerly
Australian Cancer Technology Limited,
appointed February 2001) and Epitan
Limited {appointed April 20085).

is 2lso a Director of ASX-listed
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Mr Stephen Lake,

HA (0 Hions), MBA, ACA
Mon-Executive Director
(appointed 30 luly 2004)

Mr Lake is Investment Director, QinetiQ
Limited. He has over 20 years of
experience in the high technology sector as
a senior execulive in both large mulli-
national and early stage wventure backed
companies. He was a founding executive
of Reuters venture capital arm Greenhouse,
He has sxtensive international expenence
having worked in the USA for 10 years, as
well 85 in France and the Mordic Countries.
Mr Lake is a UK qualified Chartered
Accountant and has an MBA in Technology
& Strategy from Thesaus [nstitut, France,
He is @ non-executive director of Guintel
Technology Limited and Q54 Group
Limited.

Ms Alison Ledger,

HA, MEA

MNon-Executive Director
lappointed 30 July 2004}

Ms Ledger was most recently a principal at
McKinsey & Co both in Sydney and Londoen
specialising in  financial institutions
including banking, asset manzgement,
tock exchanges, insurance and regulatory
compliance. 3he joined McKinsey in 1885
after spending time with Bankers Trust in
London marketing investment funds to
European corporate and institutional
clients. Ms Ledger has extensive financial

experience and knowledge of international

capital markets with a breadth of
knowledge in  strategy, operations,
performance improvement, cost

management, new business building and
geographic expansion. She has a Harvard
MBA and has liwed and worked in
numerous countries including the UK,
Australia and the USA,
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Dr David Mazzo,

BA {Hons), BSe (Haons), M5c, Pl
Mon-Executive Director

{appointed 25 July 2005)

Dr Mazzo is President and Chief Executive
Officer of Chugai Pharma USA, and is based
in Mew lersey. USA. Chugai Pharma USA is
part of the Roche group of companies and is
a2 subsidiary of Chugal Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (Japan), a global
research-based pharmaceutical company.
Dr Mazzo holds a Bachelor of Arls with
Honours (Interdisciplinary Humanities) and
a Bachelor of Science with Honours in
Chemistry from Yillanowa University, and a
Master of Science in Chemistry and a PhD
in Analytical Chemistry from the Liniversity
of Maszachusetts. He complemented his
Armerican education as a Ressarch Fellow at
the é&ccle Polvtechnigue Fédérale de
Lausanne, Switzerland.

Dr Mazzo is also a director of AMEX-
listed Avanir Pharmaceuticals (appointed
1 August 2005).
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Mr Michael Rogers,
BA, MBA
Mon-Executive Director

{appointed 27 July 2005)

Mr Rogers Is Executive Vice Fresident,
Chief Financial
Pharmaceuticals Incorporated, a
based In
Lexington, Massachuselis, USA.  Mr
Rogers received an MBA from the Darden
School of Business, Universily of Virginla
and a BA, Political Sclence from Unlon
College, and brings significant financing,

Officer and Treasurer of
ndevius

Dlopharmaceutical company

acquisition, Investment banking and

partnering experience relating  to

pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companias to the pSivida Board. He will

chair the Audit Committee and is the

designated “financial expert™ on the Board.
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Mrs Nadine Donovan,
BEus, CPA

Former Finance Director / Company
Secretary (resigned 30 July 2004)

Mrs Donovan graduated with a Bachelor of
Business from Edith Cowan University (WA)
and is CPA qualified.

extensive

Mrs Donovan has
experiences In  financia
accounting and
spant 8 wears in Lhe
and gas

Donovan Is also a director

corporate

compliance,
having power
generation and ol ndustry, Mrs
of ASK-listed

Lach Drummond Resources Limited.

Mrs Donovan resigned as a Director of the
Company on 30 July 2004.
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Mr Aaron Finlay,

BCom, CA

Company Secretary / Chief Financial

Officer

Mr Finlay joined pSivida in May 2004 as
Chief Officer and Company
Secretary., His most recent role was as
INVESCO Australia's Chief Financial
Officer where he had responsibilily for the

Financial

operations of finance, as well as the
egal, and human resources
functions. Prior to that position, Mr Finlay
was head of group tax and freasury for
INYESCO's global operations in London.
Prior to joining INVESCO, Mr Finlay worked

Price

compliance,

for PricewaternouseCoopers (then

Waterhouse) in London and Perth,

Mr Finlay is also chief financial officer and
company secretary of AION Diagnostics
Limited.
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Corporate Structure

pSivida Limited is a company limited by shares that is
Incorporated and domiciled In Auslralia.  pSivida Limited has
prepared a consolidated financial report incorporating the entities
that it controlled during the financial period.

Mature of Operations and Principal Activities

The principal activities during the year of entities within the

consolidated entity were:

research and development into nano-structured porous silicon
in the biotechnology sector;

patent maintenance and lodgement of new patents with regard
to specific BioSillcon™ applications;

collaboration and commercialisation of BioSilicon™

applications;

promotion of the Company both domestically and

internationally; and

further investigation of fulure collaboration pariners and
product applications.

For the financial year ending 30 June 2005, after deducting the
oulside equity interest, the loss attributable to members of
pSivida s $14 726,623 (2004; 3,683 ,206). The operating loss
includes $8,287,930 (2004; %7,011,666) (an average of
$690,661 per month) of research and development cosls
expended by pSiMedica and administrative expenses, Including
unrealised foraign exchange losses, MASDAQ listing costs,
goodwill amortisation and salaries and costs relating 1o the head
office totalling $7,666,765 (2004; $888,961) (an average of
$638.897 per month).

The ratio of Rescarch and Dovelopment expendilure to total costs
is 68.8% (2004: 88.7%) after the deduction of unrealised foreign
xchange |losses, pSiMedica acquisition costs, direct NASDAQ
listing costs and goodwill amortisation from total costs,

The research and development costs expended by pSiMedica are
minimised by the use of GinetiQ facilities in Malvern on a contract
basis under a facilities agreament with QinetiQ.

On 4 August 2004 the Company completed the $58 million
acquistiion of the pSiMedica shares that il did nol already own
with pSiMedica becoming a whaolly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Immadiately following the acquisition, Qineti@ held
35,699 629 ordinary shares in pSivida Limited, which constituted

approximately 17.5% of the issued shares of the Company,

On 24 August 2004, the Company incorporated A10ON Diagnostics
Limited, an Australian residenl wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company lo focus on developing Lhe diagnostic applications of
BioSilicon™.

A tatal of 15,570,000 options with eXercise prices mnging
between 20 cents and 65 cents, were exercised during the
financizl year, raising a total of $3,666,500.

In January 2005 the Company announced that its American
Depositary Receipts (ACRs) had commenced trading on the
MASDAQ National Market under the ticker symbol PSDV.  The
ADRs trade on a 10:1 ratio to the Company's crdinary shares.

As al 30 June 2005 the consolidated cash posilion was
$12,802061 (2004. $31,350,656) and the Company had
219,312,166 (2004 153,937, 785) shares on issue,

On £5 July 2004 the Company announced that it had appointed
Dr David Mazro as a non-execulive director of the Company,

On 27 July 2005 that Company announced that it had appointed
Mr Michael Rogers as a non-executive director of the Company.

On 15 August 2005 the Company announced that it was in
negotiations and undertaking dua diligence to acquire a US based
specialised drug delivery company through the issue of American
Dapositary Receipts {ADRs).

On 23 August 2005 the Company announced that it had raised
LIS$4.3 million (AU$5.7 million) before costs via the private
placemenl of 665,000 American Deposilary Reczipts [ADRs) Lo
predominantly US investors at US$6.50 each {AU$E.61). Each
ADR represents 1O ordinary shares. The ADRs have an attached
1 for 10, 3 year wamant exercisable at US$12.50 per ADR,
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In the opinion of the directors, there were no matters that significantly affected the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the

financial period, other than those referred to in the review of operations.

The directors recommend thal no amount be pald by way of dividend, No dividend has been paid or declared since the start of the
financial period.

Information about the business strategies of the consolidated entity and Its prospects for the future has not been included In this report
because disclosure of the information would be likely 1o result in unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity.

As at the date of this report, thera ware a total of 19,751,713 unissued ordinary shares under oplion (18,971,712 at balance data).
Refer to note 12 of the financial statements for further details of the options outstanding.

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of an op
or in the interest issue of any other registered scheme.

on, to participate in any share issue of the Com pany or any related body corporate

During the financial year, the Company Issued 12,631,537 options under the shareholder approved Employee Share Option Plan, Details
regarding the Issue of share options under this plan ae provided In note 19 of the financlal statements. The Company issued a further

2,050,000 options during the yea to third party consultants and placement agents.

Options issued after report date
The Company ganted o
Events section of this report

ions to predominantly US investors as part of Its capital raising, announced on 23 August 2005 (see Subsequent
ove). Mo options were granted to directors or specified executlves after the report date.

As at the date of this report the interasts of the Directors in the shares and options of pSivida Limited were as follows:

AION Diagnostics
pSivida Limited Limited
Ordirary Shares Options Dptions
Held Hald Held Hald Held Held
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly Directly Indirecty

.L‘-r R F_~'r|rr-t-'¢;-:-:-r'1l_:e 44 4...: - 945,111
Mr G Rezos 2,018,630 9,300,652 2,771,030 1,200,000 - 250,000
5,618,586 1,475,000 1,045,111 500,000 250,000

- 200,000 -

Mr M Rogers

page 16 pSivida Vimited | annual reperi 2005



= nanotechnolog

This report oullines the remuneration arrangements in place for
directors and executives of pSivida Limited,
Director and executive details
The directors of pSivida Limited during the year were:
Dr R Brimblecombe {Mon-Executive Chaiman)
Mr G Resos (Managing Direclor)
Oir R Aston (Director, Strategy
Mr S Lake (Mon-Executive), appointed 30 July 2004
Ms A Ledger (Mon-Executive), appainted 30 July 2004

Mrs M Donovan (Finance Director), resigned 30 July 2004

The Company execulives of pSivida Limited during the year wene:

Mr A Finlay (Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer)

The group executives of pSivida Limited during the year wers;

Dr M Parry-Billings {(Research & Development Director,
pSiMedica Limited)

Prof L Canham {Chicf Scientific Officer, pSiMedica Limited)
*  Dr A Kluczewska (Managing Director, AION Diagnostics)
*  Mr S Connor (Director of Development, pSiMedica Limited)

Dr J Ogden {Commercizl Director, pSiMedica Limited)

Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors Is
responsible for determining and reviewing compensalion
arrangements for the Directors and Executlve Officers. The
Remuneration Committes will assess the appropriateness of the
nature and amount of emoluments of such officers on a periodic
basis by reference to relevant smployment market conditions with
the overall abjactive of ensuring maximum stakeholder benafil
from the retention of @ high quality Board and executive leam.
Such offlcers are pald their base emolument In cash only.

To assist in achieving these objectives, the Remuneration
Committee will link the nature and amount of executive Directors”
and officers’ emoluments lo the Company's financial and
operational performance.

Execulive Officers are those directly accountable for the
operational management and strategic direction of the Company

and the consolidaled entity.

> biomaterials = platform tachnaol

applications

Fixed remuneration

Fued remuneration consisls of a base remuneralion package,
which includes directors” fees (in the case of Directors),
salaries, consulting fees and employer contributions o
superannuation funds.

Fixed remuneration levels for Directors and executive officers are
reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee through a
process that considers the employee's personal development,
achievemenl of key performance objeclives for the year, induslry
benchmarks wherever possible and CP| data. Recommendations
for remuneration levels are given by the Remuneration Committee
ta the Board tor approval.

Key performance indicators (KPIs) are individually tailored by the
Remuneration Committee for each director and execultive officer
each year, and reflact an assessmant of how that employee can
fulfil their particular responsibilities in a way that best contributes

lo Compary perforrmance and shareholder weallh in Lhal year.

Performance-linked remuneralion

All employ=es may recelve benuses andfor share options based on
achievement of specific goals related lo performance agalnst
individual KPIs and to the performance of the Company as 2 whole
as determined by the directors based on a range of factors. These

factors include traditional financial considerstions such as
u|HrraIin;; performance, cash (:url.‘iurnph-::un and deals concluded
and also Industry-specific factors relaling to the advancement of
the Company's research and development activities and
intellectual property portfolio, collaborations and relationships
with scientific institutions, third parties and intemal employees,

The Remuneration Committee determines the total ameunt of
performance-linked remuneration payable as a percentage of the
tatal annualised salaries for all employecs employed as at the ond
of the financial year (with pro rata reductions to the annualised
salary made for any emplovee not employed for the entire financial
yearh. Once the Remunsration Cormnittee has determined the
total performance-linked remuneration payable across the
Company, Commiltee members assess the performance of each
individual staff member within their depariment, relative to that
staff members KPIs and decide how much performance-linked
remuneration should be paid to that person

piiwida limited | annual report 2005
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Elements of director and executive remuneration

Remuneration packages contain the following key alements:
: 8

a) Primary benefits — salary / fees and bonuses;

b) Post-employment benefits - Including superannuation;

c) Equity = share options granted under the Employee Share Option Flan as disclosed (n Note 19 to the |

d} Other benefits.

nancial statements; and

The following table discloses the remuneration of the directors of the Company during the financial year from pSivida and controlled

entities within the consolidated entlity:

Primary

Salary
and feas

Bomus

Post- Other
employment bancfits
Super-
annuation
g %

Equity

Options*
(i)

Total

Total
cash-based
remuneration

Directors

Cr B Brimblacombe
Mr G Rezos

Dr R Aston

Mr S Lake

Ms A Ledger

Mrs N Donovan

478,755
1,795,094
908,902
114,635
121,693

2,271

249,459
433,967
350,310
22,917
29,975
2,271

Tota 940,704

3,421,350

1,088,899

*  These oplions had no taxable value at the time of i
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The following table discloses the emuneration of the highest remunerated executive of the Company and the 5 highest remunerated group

executives of the consolidated entity during the Hinanclal year:

Primary Past- Other Equity Total Total
employment benefits cash-based
Salary Bonus Super- Oplions® remuneration
and fees annualion U]
§ 5 $ 3 $ $ 3

Company Execulive
Mr & Finlay 144 572 32,500 13135 - 370,39 560,603 190,207
Groip Exectifives
Praf L Canham 193,780 22,553 6,056 353,524 575,913 222,389
Dr A Hluczewska 208,333 10,000 299,808 518,141 218,333
Mr S Connor 181 146 21,728 10,612 143,751 a7 247 213,496
Dr J Cgden 169 816 20,378 6,060 143,751 340,005 196,254
Dr M Parry-Billings 149 BOG . 17,977 2,871 146,323 316,977 170,654
Tatal 1,047,453 42 500 95,781 25,599 1457 6563 2 bbk HEG 1,211,333

These optlons had no taxable value at the time of Issue,

During the year options were granted 1o directors and specified executives in August 2004 in resped of lhe pSiMedica acquisition
and April 2005 In respect of annual performance reviews, pursuant to the Company's Employee Share Oplion Plan, which have been
included as equity options remuneration above, These options have been valued using the Black Scholes Qption Valuation Model,
which takes into account time value and the volatility of the stock price.

A lotal of 8 251,000 options were issued to directors and employees in August 2004, The options are exercisable at §1.18,
being an 8% premium to the share price at the time of the grant, and may be exercised between the date of grant and expiry on
5 August 2009

A total of 3,152 000 options were ssued to employess in April 2006, The options are exercisable at $0.80, being a 10% pramium
to the shara price at the lima of the grant. The options are subject to varying vesting and performance conditions and expire on
31 March 2010,
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Directors

Value of options issued to directors and executives

The following table discloses the value of options granted, exerclsed or

Options
granted

Value at
grant date

%

Options

exercised

Value at
exercise

date

lapsed during the year:

Options Total value

lapsed of options
granted,
Value at axercised

time of
lapse

and lapsed

£ 5

Value of Percentage

oplions of total
included in remunear-
remune- ation for the

ation for the year that
year consists of
options
g %

Cr R Brimblecombe 229796

Mr G Rezos 1,361,12
Dr R Aston 558,592
Mr S Lake 91,718
Ms A Ledger
Mrs N Donovan
Mr A Finlay

Praf L Canham

412,772
380,009

f =]

Cr & Kluczewska

236,534

Mr S Connor

r J Ogden

Or M Parry-Blllings

Tota 4013

324,500

aaaid

- 1,261,127
2 5B 57
- 21,718

- 324,500
- 412,772
380,009
- 236,534
- 170,236
170,236
311,394

- 4,338,132

229,296 47.9
361,127 758
558,537 61.5

91,718 80.0

91,718 75.4

370,396 g6.1
153,524 61.4
299,808 57.9
143,751 40.2
143,751 42.3

Company performance

In considering the Company’s performance and its effect on shareholder wealth, the Board have regard to a broad range of factors, some

of which are financlal and others of which relate to the scientific progress on the Company’s projects, results of trials, relationship building

with research institutions, collaborations elc. The Board also gives consideration to the Company's result and cash consumption for the

year. |t does not ufilise earnings per share as a performance measure or contemplate payment of any dividends in the short to medium

term given that all efforts are currently being expended to build the business and establish self-sustaining revanue streams. The Company

Is of the view that any adverse movement In the Company’s share price related to an Industry trend or other simlilar non-specific economic
condition should not be a punitive factor In assessing the performance af individuals.
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During the financial pericd, the Company maintained an insurance policy which indemnifies the Directors and Officers of pSivida Limited
in respact of any Hability incurred in connection with the paformance of their dulies as Directors or Officers of the Company. The
Directors made a personal contribution toward the premium to satisfy Section 199B of the Corporations Act 2001. The Company's
insurers have prohibited disclosure of the amount of the premium payable and the level of iIndemnification under the insurance contract,

The Tollowing lable sels oul he number of direclors’ meelings (including meelings of commitlees of direclors) held during Lhe financial
year and the number of meetings attended by each director {while they were a director or committee memberh, During the financial year,
20 Board meetings, 2 audit committee meetings and 3 remuneration committee mestings were held.

Board of directors Audit committee Remuneration Nomination
committee commilles
Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended
Dr R Brimblecombe 20 20 3 2 2 1
Mr_G Fhwr_i 2“ 20
Dr R Aston 20 19
Mr S Lake 19 19 3 3 2 2
I'I.I_R__A Lrﬂﬁm 19 19 3 : )
Mrs N Donovan 1 ]

The auditor's independence declaration is included on page 31 of the financial report.

Dated at Perth, 13 September 2005, and signed In accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Mr G J Rezos
Managing Director
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Senior Mana

rement Profiles

Prof Leigh Canham,
pSiMedica Chief Scientific Officer,
Director AION Diagnostics

Canham has spent the past
twenly years
differing aspects of silicon semiconductor

Professor
conducting research on
Electronics
Evaluation
Research Agency, now Qinelicl) as a Higher

1986 and was

promated to Senior Scientific Officer In

He joined the

DERA (Defence

technology.

Division of

Scientific Officer In

1988, Principal Scientist in 1995 and

DERA Fellow in 1993,

He has made two seminal discoverles in his
caeer [0 date; that silicon can emit light
efficiently, in 1920; and that silicon can be
rendered bioactive or bDiodegradable, in
1935, Professar Canham is the worlds
foremost authorlty on porous silicon and
one of the most cited physical scientists In
the United Kingdom.

page 22
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Dr Mark Parry-Billings,
pSiMedica Reseach & Development

Directaor

Or Parry-Billings is a former Director of
Rescarch & Development at

Blomed,

Innovata
whare he was responsible for
dewice,

research aclivities and

pharmaceutical, Clinica and
manufacturing
Prior to that position he held R&D roles at
Schering Healtheare in the UK.

functions,

devalopment
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Dr Jill Dgden,
pSiMedica Commercial Director

Dr Ogden has over 18 years” experience in
healthcare and drug
Frior to

the biotechnology,
delivery Industries. oining
pSiMedica she held Business
Development rales with Andaris Lid and
Cuadrant Healthcare plc and following the
Elan
Director of

sanior

acquisition of Quadrant by
Corporation, she
Business Development for

Delivery Lid.

became

Elan Drug



Stephen Connor,
p3iMedica Director of Development

Mr Connor has extensive knowledge of the
pharmaceutical and biclogical industries,
including biomaterial R&D for both early
and late phase clinical trals, After
graduating in Microbiclogy, he worked at
the Withington Hospital, Manchester from
1978 to 1985, He then held increasingly
senior positions in Cambridge at Murex
Medical Research Ltd, Guantum
Biosystems Lid, Cantab Pharmaceuticals
Research Ltd, Chirgscience R&D Ltd, and
most recently, Imutran Ltd - 2 Novartis
Fharma company. Mr Connor joined
pSiMedica in November 2001

anotechnologies = biomaterials = platform technolog

Dr Anna Kluczewska,
AIDON Diagnostics Managing Director

Dr Kluczewska gained considerable
expenence in product development and
management, based at the global
headquarters for Baxter Healthcare's
BioSurgery division. In a global product
management role, Dr Kluczewska oversaw
the management of Baxter BioSurgery's
products in over 50 countries focusing on
registration and product launch and global
preduct management. Dr Kluczewska has
played an integral part at pSivida, initially
invelved in marketing and product
development to  latterly, business
development, creation  of intellectual
property and general management.

Dr Kluczewska was appeinted as Managing
Director of AION Diagnostics which is
focused on the commercialization of
critical diagnostics to provide life saving
solutions through early detection and
continual monitoring products.

pEivida limited |
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yorate Governance Statement

The Board of directors of pSivida Limited |s responsible for the

corporate governance of the consolidated entity and Is committad

to applying the ASX Corporate Governance Councll Principles of

Good Corporate Governance and Bas! Prachice Recommendations
The Board guides and
monitors the business and affairs of pSivida Limited on behalf of
the shareholders. It Is arequiremant of the Board that the Company
maintains high standards of ethics and integrity at all times.

{“ASY Principles™) where practicable,

The ASX Principles are an important regulatory guide for listed
companies reporting on their corporate governance practices.
Under ASX Listing Rule 4,10.3, listed companies must disclose
the extent to which they have followed the ASX Principles, and If
any of the recommendations have not bean followed then the
Company must explain why not.

The requirements under Listing Rule 4.10.3 apply to pSivida for
the financial year ended 30 June 2005 and this corporate
gvernance statement sets out and explains any departures by
pSivida from the ASX Principles.

Important information relating to pSivida's corporate governance
policies and |:-ra|:ti|:'=.‘£ are sot out on the Ec'npa'w's wabsite at
www.psivida.com. The following documents are summarised on
he website and are available in full from the Company:

Board Charter;

Code of Conduct;

Communications Strategy Policy;

Continuous Disclosure Folicy;

Securities Trading Policy;

Risk Policy & Internal Compliance and Control Systems;
Audit Committes Charter;

Momination Committes Charter; and

Remuneration Committee Charter,

The corporate governance section of pSkida's website was first
made available from 1 July 2002 and the decuments referred o
above were gvallable from that date. pSivida has undertaken a
review of its corporate governance policles and practices since that
date and 15 continuing to update its pallcies and practices to reflect
developing corporate governance requirements and practices.
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The Board's Duties

As the Board acts on behalf of and is accountable to the
shareholders, the Board seeks to identify the expectations of the
shareholders, as well as other regulatory and ethical expactations
and obligations and slrives to meel those expectations. In
addition, the Board Is responsible for Identifying areas of
significant business risk and ensuring arrangements are in place
{o adequately manage those risks,

The role of the Board Is to oversee and guide the management of
pSivida with the aim of protecting and enhancing the interests of
its shareholders and taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders including employees and the wider community.

Thie Board has adopted a formal Charter which clearly establishas
the relationship belween the Board and management and
describes their functions and responsibilities. A summary of the
Board Charter has bee
section of the Company's website,

posted on the corporale governance

The Boad is responsible for setting the strategic direction of the
Company, establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievement of those goals. The Managing Direclor is responsible
to the Board for the day to day management of the Company.

Code of Conduct

Directors of the Company are also subject to pSividg's Code of
Conduct (see further discussion below). The Code of Conduct is
considered by the Board to be an effective way to guide the
behaviour of all directors and employees and demonstrates the
Company's commitment to ethical and compliant practices.

The composition of the Board Is determined in accordance with
the following principles and guidelines:
the Board should comprise at least 3 direclors;

of qualitications and expertise; and

« the Board should comprise directors with an appropriate range

the Board shall meel regularly and follow meeling guidelines
set down to ensure all directors are made aware of, and have
avallable all necessary information, to participate in an
inform ssion of all agenda items,
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As al the date of this report, the Board comprises a non-executive
chairperson, two execulive direclors and a furher Tour non
secutive independent directors. Details of the directors are sel
oul in the Directors' Report.

Independence of Directors

The Board has reviewed the position and associations of each of the
seven directors in office at the date of this report and considers
that five of the directors are independent. In considering whether
a director is independent, the Board has regard to the
independence crteria in ASYX Best Practice Recommendations
Principle 2 and other facts, informatien and circumstances that the
Board considers relevant. The Board assesses the independence of
new directors upon appointment and reviews their independence,

and the independence of other directors, as appropriate.

The Board considers thal Dr Brimblecombe meels the criteria in
Principle 2. He has no material business or contractual relationship
with the Company, other than as a director and no conflicts of
interest which could interfere with the exercise of independent
judgament, Accordingly, he is considerad to be independent,

The Board considers that Mr Lake meets the crtera in Principle
2. He has no material business or contractual relationship with the
Company, other than as a director and no conflicts of inferest which
could interfere with the exercise of independenl judgement,
notwithstanding he is 8 nomine2 of QinetiCl (as at the date of this
report QinetiG holds approximately 16.3% of the Company’s issuad
share capital), The Board considers Mr Lake to be indepandent on the
basis Qinetid is not in a position to exenise control over the Company.

The Board considers that Ms Ledger mests the crteria in Principle
2. She has no material business or coatractual relationship with
the Company, other than as a director and no conflicts of inlerest
which could Interfere with the exercise of Independent judgement.
Accordingly, she is considered to be independent,

The Board considers that Or Mazio meets the crteria in Principle
Z. He has no material business or contractual relationship with
the Company, other than as a director and no conflicts of interest
which could interfere with the exercise of independent judgement,
Accordingly, he is considerad to be independent,

The Board considers that Mr Rogers meets the crteria in Principle
2. He has no material business or contractual relationship with
Lhe Campany, olher than as a direclor and no conllicts of inlerest
which could interfere with the exercise of Independent judgement.
Accordingly, he is considered to be independent.

> biomaterials = platform tachnaol
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Both Mr Rezos and Dr Aston are employed in an executive capacity
by the Company and so are not considered 1o be independent.

The pSivida Board did not have a majorty of Independent
directors throughout the antire financial year, and therefore was
not in compliance with Best Practice Recommendation 2.1 for the
entire period, However on the appointments of Mr Lake and Ms
Ledger on 30 July 2004 the Board consisted of a majority of
independent directors. Prior to the appoinlment of Mr Lake and
Ms Ledger, Lhe Board considered thal given the Company's slage
ol development and resources available that il was appropnale to
have a majority executive Board, In the interests of maximising the
efficiency of the Board and developing the Company's business,

The directors will continue to monitor the composition of the
Board to ensure its structure remains appropriate and consistent
with affective management and good governance,

The Constitution of the Company requires one third of the
directors, other than the Managing Director, to retire trom office at
each Annual General Meeting, Directors who have been appointed
by the Board are required to retire from office at the next Annuoal
General Meeting and are not taken into account in determining the
number of directors to retire at that Annual General Meeting
Directors cannot hold office for a period in excess of three years
or later than the third Annual General Meeting following their
appointment without submitting themselves for re-election,
Retiring directors are eligible for re-elaction by sharsholders.

Recommendations of candidates for new directors are made by the
Baard's Momination Committes for consideration by the Board as
a whole. If it 5 nocessary to appoint a new director te fill a
vacancy on [he Board or Le complement the existing Board, a wide
potential base of possible candidates 15 considered. |Ia candidate
is recommended by the Momination Committes, the Board
assesses that proposed new director against a range of criferia
including background, experience, professional skills, personal
qualities, the polential for the candidate’s skills to augment the
existing Board and the candidate’s availability to commit to the
Board's activities. [T these critena are met and the Board appolnts
the candidate as a director, that director must retire at the next
fallowing Annual General Meeting and will be eligible for election
by shareholders at that Annual General Meeting,
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The Board met twenty times between 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005.

The Board meels forma Iy at least ten times each yeaar, and from
tima to time meetings are convened oulside the scheduled dates

onslder Issues of importance.

Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings s
detailed on page 21 of this annual report,

The Board's policy with respect to performance evaluation Is to
review Its performance and that of its Committees and executive
management at least annually. The Chairman discusses with each
director, on & one on one basis, their contribution to the Board.

The method of the assessment is to be saf by the Board.

Cue to the changes to the structure of the Board In July 2005,
the new Board has not undertaken & performance evaluation of
Itsalf or each director before the date of this annual report. The
short time in which the current, expanded Board has been in
place has resulted In the Board delaying ils performance review
until mid 2006.

The performance svaluation to be conducted by the Board will
Include consideration of the Board's policies in relation to Board
and executive evaluation, which to date have not yet been

formalised. Whan the Board formally adopts its evaluation
policies, and determines the manner in which evaluation will be
conducted, a summary of the relevant processes will be disclosed
on the corporate governance section of the pSivida website.

Furthermore, the Board aims to ensure that the shareholdars are
Iinformed of all Information necessary o assess the performance

the directors, Information 15 communicated to the shareholders

through:
the annual repart which Is distributed to all shareholders;
the half-yearly report;
the annual general meeting and other meetings o obtain
shareholder approval for Board actions as appropriate: and
continuous disclosure In accordance with ASX Listing Rule
3.1 and the Company's continuous disclosure policy,
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The Board has procedures to allow directors, in the furtherance of

their duties as directors or members of 2 Committes, {0 seck

independent professional advice at the Company's expense,
subject to the prior written approval of the Chairman.

The Board has established the following committeas to advise and
suppart the Board in carrying out Its dutles:

Audit and Compllance Committee;

Momination Committe

* Remuneration Committee.

Audit and Compliance Committee

It is the Board's responsibility to ensure that an effective internal
ncluding internal
confrols to deal with both the effectiveness and efficiency of

control framework exists within the Group,

significant business processes. Effective Internal controls include
the safeguarding of assels, the maintenance of proper accounting
records, and the reliabllity of financial information as well as non-

financial considerations such as the benchmarking of operational
key performance Indicators.

The Board has established an Audit and Compliance Committee,
which operates under a Charter approved by the Board, and has
delegated the f

for the establishment and
maintenance of a framework of Interna

responsibility
control and ethical
standards for the management of the consolidated entity to the

Audit and Compliance Committee,

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit and Compliance

Committee include:

(a) ensuring appropriate Group policies and

procedures are defined, adopted and maintained;

accounting

{b) ensuring that Group operating and management reporting
procedures, and the system of Internal control, are of a
sufficlently high standard to provide timely, accurate and
relevant information as a sound basis for management of the
Group's business;

{c) reviewing the Group Financlal Statements prior to their
appraval by the Board;
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[dy reviewing the scope of work including approval of strategic and
annual audt plans and eftectiveness ol both the exiemal and
internal audit functions across the Growp;

L8

(e} monitoring the proper operation of and issues raised through

subsidiary company Audit and Compliance Committess;

(N ensure Lhal approprale processes are in place lo ensure
compliance with all legal requirements affecting the Group;

(@) ensure that all internal and industry codes of conduct and
slandards of corporale behaviour are being complied wilh;

(h} appointment of, on recommendation by the Managing
Director, 8 personts) respoensible for Internal Audit functions
as specilied from Llime o time by, and in accordance wilh, Lhe

Committes's Terms of Reterence;

(I responsible for making recommendations to the Board of
Directors on Lhe appointmenl, reappointment or replacement
{subject, It applicable, to shareholder ratification), monitorng
of effactiveness, and independence of the extenal auditors,

[j) actioning any other business processes of functionswhich may

be referred to it by the Board of Directors,

The operatlon and responsibilities of the Audit and Compllance
Committee are generally consistent with ASX Principle 4. The
Committee met two times during the financial year ended 30 June
2004,  Consistent with ASX Principle 4, a summary of the

Committee’s role, rights, responsibilities and membership

requirements has been posted to the corporate govemance seclion
of the Company’s website referred Lo above,

The members of the Audit and Compliance Committee at the date
of this report were:

Mr Michael Rogers — Chalrperson and designated Financial
Expert {appainted 27 July 2006);

Ms Alison Ledger (appointed 2 August 2004); and

Dr Cavid Mazzo (appointed 25 July 2005).
During the financial year, the follewing persons were also
members of the Audit and Compliance Commiltee:

Dr Roger Brimblecombe {resigned 27 July 2005);

Mr Slephen Lake (resigned 27 July 2005);

Dr Roger Aston (resigned 2 August 2004); and

Mrs Madine Donovan {resigned 30 July 2004),

biomaterials > platform technologi
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Due to the structure of the Board during the financial year, the
composition of the Audil and Compliance Committee did nol
comply with Recommendation 4.3 of the ASX Principles at the
beginning of the financial year. However, very shorly after the
appointment of Alison Ledger and Stephen Lake to the Board on
30 July 2004, the Board resolved to change the composition of
the Committee to meet the requirements of Recommendation 4.3,

Appointment of External Auditors

The Audit and Compliance Committes is directly responsible for
the appointment, reappointment of replacement {subject, if
applicable, to shareholder ratification), remuneration, monitoring
of offectiveness, and independence of the external auditors,
including resolution of disagreements between management and
the auditer regarding financlal reporting.

The Comimillee musl pre-approve all audil and non-audil sgrvices
provided by the external auditors and must not engage the external
auditors to perform any non-auditfassurance sepvices that may
impair or appear to impair the external auditors judgement or
independence in respect of the Company, The Committes may
delegate pre-approval authority to @ member of the Committee,
The decisions of any Audit and Compliance Committee member to
whom pre-approval authorily is delegated musl be presenled o
the il Committee at its next scheduled meeting,

When reviewing the auditor's independence, the committes will
require the rotation of the audit parner at least once every 5
years, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,

MNomination Committee

The Board has established a Nemination Commities to assisl the
Board in selecting candidates for the position of director. The
Momination Committee shall comprise at least two members and
the membars of the Momination Committes at the date of this
repor were:

Or Roger Brimblecombe -
2004);

Chairperson {appoinied 2 Augusl

Dr Roger Aston; and

Ms Alison Ledger (appointed 2 August 2004),
During the tinancial year, the tollowing parson was also a member
of the Nomination Committes;

Mr Gavin Rezos (resigned 2 August 2004),
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The primary purpose of the Nomination Commiltee as sat oul in
its Terms of Reference is to support and advise the Board in
fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders in ensuring that the
Board is comprised of individieals who are best able to discharge
the responsibllities of directors hawving regard o the law and
standards of governance by:

Assessing the skills required on the Board, and the extent to
which the required skilis are represented on the Board:
Establishing processes for the review of the performance of
individual directors and the Board as a whole; and
Establishing processas for the |dentitication of suitable

candidates for appointment Lo the Board.

The operation and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are generally consistent with ASX Frinciple 2.

The Committes did not meet during the financial year ended 20
lune 2005. Consistent with ASX Principle 2, a summary of the
Committea’s role, rights, responsibllities and membership
ments has been posted to the corporate governance section
of the Company's website referred to above, Recommendation 2.5
of the ASX Principles recommends that, among other things,

Fequine

companies disclose their nomination committea's policy for the
appointment of directors on thelr website. The Board considers
that the information set out on the website, in summaising the
responsibilities of the Momination Committee, adequately sets out
the appmach to be taken by the Board and the MNomination
Committe2 in relation to the appointment of new directors, and
has not Included any additional disclosure In relation to the
Nomination Committea's policy for the appointment of directors as

referred Lo in Recommendation 2.5.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee to assist
the Board in ensuring that appropriate and effective remuneration
packages and policies are Implemented within pSivida and Its
subsidiaries for the Managing Director, executive directors and
direct reports to the Managing Director. The Commitlee's role also
extends to the review of non-executive directors' fees.

The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least two
members and the members of the Remunaration Committae at the
date of this report were:

» Dr Roger Brimblecombe (Chairperson;

« Dr Roger Aston: and

e

*  Mr Stephen Lake (appointed 2 August 2004).
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The duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Commitlee as

set out in Its Terms of Reference are:
To reviesy and recommend to the Board, remuneration policies
and packages for the Managing Director, execulive directors
and direct reports to the Managing Director.

» To recommend to the Board any changes in remuneration
policy benefits and

remuneration structure for executives and which is likely Lo

Including superannuation, other

have a material impact on the Group.

To review and recommend to the Board proposals for emploves
and non-executive direclor equity plans.

To review and recommend Lo the Board proposals far short and
long term Incentive programmes for execulives.

To review and recommend to the Board any changes to non-
executive directors' fees,

«  Toensure there |s a proper performance management process
In place throughout the organisation and that It is operating
affectivaly,

= To be informed of:

— current trends in executive remuneration and associated
incentive Initiatives;

- legisiative issues associated with execulive remuneration
programmes.

The Committee met two times during the financial year ended 30
June 2005, Details of the meetings attended by each Commitles
member are set out on page 21 of the Directors’ Report.
Consistent with ASX Principle 9, a summary of the Committes's
role, rights, responsibilities and membership requirements has
bean posted to the corporate governance saction of the Company's
website referred to above, A copy of the Committes's Terms of
Reference Is avallable upon request to the Company.

A brief discussion on the Company's remuneration policles in
respect of directors and executives is set out on page 17 of this
annual report, Detailed disclosure of the remuneration pald to the
Company's directors and executives is set out on pages 18 and 19,

Remuneration pald to the Company's directors and executives is
determined with reference to the market level of remuneration for

other listed biotechnology companies both in Australia and the
UK, This assessment is undertaken with reference to advice and

comment provided by vaious search executive firms operating in



= nanotechnologies >

the sector. Consideration of the Company's predominantly
reszarch and development stage of development 15 laken inlo

account in this review.

Bonus levels paid to the Company's direclors and executives have
been determined and paid on the basis of the Company's
performance reflected through iIncreases in the market
capitalisation of the Company and upon succassful capital

raisings.

Stock options are awarded under the Employes Share Option Plan
to the Company's directors and executives and are determined on
the individuals' performance agalnst milestones, the level of
involvement in achieving the corporate milestones and goals and
to an extent the relativity belween executives.

Total remuneration for non-executive directors is determined by
resolution of shareholders, The Remuneration Committee
determines actual payments to directors and reviews their
remunaration annually, based on independent external advice,
relativities and the duties and accountabilities of the directors.
The maximum avalable aggregate remuneration approved for non
execulive directors is $280,000. During the year the Company's
non-executive Chairman received a combined total payment of
directors' fees of $36, 700,

Mon-executive directors may provide specific consulting advice to
the Company upon direction from the Board. Remuneration for
this work |5 made at markel rates, During the year Dr Roger
Brimblecombe provided specific consulting advice and received

E76,125 (AB1B/,759),

Mon-execitive directors do not recelve any other retlrement
benefits other than a superannuation guarantee contribution
required by government regulation, which is currently 9% of their
fees, Mon-execulive directors do participate in the Company's
Employee Share Option Plan, given the Company's size and stage
of development and the necessity to attract the highest calibre of
professionals to the role, whilst maintaining the Compamny's cash
resanes,

The equity basaed execulive remuneration 15 made under Lhe
Companys Employee Share Option Plan ("Plan"). The Plan was
approved by shareholders in 2001 and re-approved in 2004,

biomaterials > platform technologi

multiple applications

Consistent with ASX Principle 4.1, the Company's financial report
preparation and approval process for the financial year andad 30
Juna 2005 involved both the Managing Director and the Chief
Financial Officer providing detailed representations to the Boand
covering:

compliance with pSivida's accounting policies and relevant
accounting standands;

the accuracy of the financial statements and that they provide
a true and fair view;

Integrily and objectivity of the financial stalements; and

effectivenass of the system of internal control

The pSivida Board accepls that taking and managing risk is
central to bwilding sharchelder value. The Board manages
pSivida's level of risk by adbering lo a formal Risk Policy &
Intermal Compliance and Contral Systems statement. The pSivida
Risk Policy & Internal Compliance and Control Systems statement
was adopted on 30 June 2003 and is available from the corporate
governance section of the Company's websile.

The Audit and Compliance Committes has paimary responsibility
for oversight of the financial risks of the Company, in accordance
with the Audit and Compliance Committee Charler and with
parlicular emphasis on pSivida's accounling, Tfinanc
The Audit and Compliance Committes will
recelve regular reports from the external auditor on critical policies
and practices of the Company and in relation to alternative

al and

intemal contmls.

traatments of financial information.  The Audit and Compliance
Committee Charter was adopted on 30 June 2003 and is available

from Lhe corporate govemance section of Lhe Company's website,

The Company employs executives and retains consultants each
with the requisite experience and qualifications Lo enable the
Board to manage the risks to the Company. The Board and Audit
and Compliance Committes review risks to the Company at regular
Board and Audit and Compliance Committea meetings,
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Corporate Governance Statement

pSivida adopted a Securities Trading Policy on 30 June 2003.

The policy summarises the law relating to insider trading and sets

out the policy of the Company on directors, officers, emplovees
out the policy © g Lompany on directors, oiMicers, employees

and consultants dealing in securities of pSivida.

A summary of the Securities Trading Folicy has been posted to the
corporate governance section of the Company’s website, This
policy 15 provided to all directors and employees and compliance
with It Is reviewed on an ongoing basis in accordance with the
Company’s risk management systems.

pSivida has established policles and procedures in order to
comply with its continuous and periodic disclosure requirements
under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and the ASX Listing
Rules. The pSivida Board has adopted a formal Continuous
Disclosure Policy, 8 summary of which Is avallable from the
corporate governance section of the Company's website. The
Continuous Disclosure Policy was adopted on 26 September
2002, and |5 consistent with the informal policies and practices
of the Board that were in place prior to the formal adoption of the

Continuous Disclosure Policy document.

The Company Secretary has primary responsibility for the
disclosure of material information to ASIC and ASX and maintains
a procedural methodology for disclosure, as well as for record
kezping.

pSivida's Continuous Disclosure Policy requires all management
ta notily the Managing Direcbor, or
absence, of any |\‘ll’|[9I1-',|-?:|||_\l material Iinformation as soon as
practicable. The Policy also sets out what renders information
malterial,

e Lompany Secratary in his

The Board reviews the Company’s compliance with this policy on
an ongoing basis and will update it from time to ime, If necessary.
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The Board's formal policy on communlcating with shareholders, its
Communications Strategy Folicy, is available from the corporate
governance section of the Company’s website and supplements
pSivida's Continuous Disclosure Palicy.

The aim of the Communications Strategy Folicy is 1o make Known
pSivida's methods for disclosure to shareholders and the general
public. The Policy details the steps between disclosure o ASIC
and ASX and communication to shaeholders, with the Company's
website playing an important role in pSivida's communications

strategy.

The Board reviews this policy and compliance with It on an
ongoing basis.

To add further value to pSivida's communications with
shareholdars, the axternal auditor will be requested to attend the
Company’s AGM and be available to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and
content of the auditor's report.

shareholders'

The pSivida Code of Conduct was adopted on 30 June 2003, The
Code covers 8 broad range of |ssues and refers (o those practices
necessary (o maintain confidence in pSivida's integrity, including

procedures in relatlon to:
compliance with the law;
financial records;
contributions to political parties, candidates or campaigns;
occupational health and safety;
confidential information;

canflict of interest;
efficlency;
« equal apportunity;
corporate bribery; and
membership to industry and professional associations.
The Code directs individuals to report any conlraventions of the
Code to thelr superier or the Managing Direchor,
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> Auditor’'s Independence Declaration

Zll ErNST & YOUNG T R e

Ausiraks

GPO Box MS38
Perth WA G843

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of pSivida Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial report of pSivida Limited for the financial year ended 30
June 2005, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of
professional conduct,

Qﬂ',r‘l‘ a ?;?

Ernst & Young

7.7‘,'/

V W Tidy

Partner

Perth

Date: 13 September 2005
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> Statement of Financial Performance

for the vear ended 30 June 2005

Motes Consolidated p3ivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 3 $ $
Revenues from ordinary activities 2 B28,976 381,679 599,199 251,314
Corporate office expenses {7.666,765) {BRB 961) {6,546, 822) (888,961)
Research and development 3 (8,287,930) (7,011 ,666) E
Book value f costs on sale of
propery, plant and equipment [28) {28}
Loss from ordinary activities bafore
income tax (15,125,719} {7.518,976) {5,947,623) (637 675)
Income: tax expanse relating to
ordinary activilies 4 -
Loss from ordinary activities after
Income tax (15,125,719 (7,518,976) (5,947 ,623) (637 ,675)
Loss from extraordinary ilems afler
income tax benatil -
Net loss (15,125,719 (7,518,976) (5,947 ,623) (637 ,675)
Mel loss atlributable (o oulside
aquily Interest l& 3599,1% 3.835.//1 -
Net loss attributable to members
of the Company 15 (14,726,523) (3,683 205) (5,947 ,623) 1637 675)
Increase [ (decrease) in lorsign currency
translation reserve arsing on translation
of self-sustaining foreign operations 144a) (350,287} 77,985 -
Total revenua, sxpense and valuation
adjustments attributable to members
of the Company recognised directly in equity {350,287) 77985 -
Total changes in equity other than those
resulting from fransactions with owners as
owners attributable to members of the Company (15,076,810} (3,605,220) {5,947 ,623) (637 675)
Baslc eamings per share (cenls) 22 (7.09) {2.90)
Diluted earnings per share {cents) 22 (7.04) {2.90)

This statement of financial performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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> Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2005

MNotes Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 3 $ $

Current Assets
Cash 17(a) 12,892 061 31,350,656 10,243,479 29 551,397
Receivables & Fos 418 340,482 119,529 60,618
Dther 7 322,933 33,958 174,998 38,958
Total Cument Assets 13924412 31,730,096 10,538,006 29,650 973
Mon-Current Assets
Other financial assets 8 - - 85,383,940 13,657,129
Property, plant and equipment 9 3,273,663 669 699 TH 456 69,312
Intangihles 10 A4, 837 738 7,934 527
Other 7 32,641 13,439
Total Non-Current Assets 68,110,501 8,636,962 85,459,396 13,739,880
Total Assets 82035313 40,36/ 008 495,997,402 43,390 853
Current Liabilities
Payables 11 2,017,820 1938115 603,498 297,886
Pravisions 12 29 B79 - 29,879 -
Total Cument Liabilities 2,047 699 1,938,115 633,377 297 B8G
Total Liabilities 2,047 599 1,938,115 633,377 297 886
Net Assels 79,987 614 38,428 943 95,364,025 43,092 967
Equity
Parent entity interast

Contributed equity 13 107,882 B35 49 957 982 107,883,835 49,957 982

Resenes 14 20,761 78,220 292,878 -

Accumulated losses 15 (7,916 ,987) (13,190.459) (12.812,638) (6.865015)
Farent entity interast 79,987 614 36,845 743 495,364,025 43,092 967
Total outside equity interest 1o 1,683,200 - -
Total Equity 79987 614 38,428 943 95 364,025 43 092 967

This statement of financial position should be read In conjunction with the accompanying nofes to the financial statements.
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> Statement of Cash Flows

for the vear endec 30 June 2

LR W LW

Motes Consolidated p3ivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 3 $ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Payments to suppliers, employees
and consultants (4,815,520} (2,044,430) (4,696,451} (2,129,415}
Interest received BE7 310 326,576 99,199 251 314
Research and development
expendilure (8,318,054) {6,124,304) -
Other incoms 161 666 27 474 -
Interest expensa {6,782) -
Met cash used in operating
activities 17ih) {12304 598) (7.821 466) {4,097 252) {1878 101)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of propedy, plant
and equipment (3,410,218} (527,168) (49,444) (60,046)
Cash paid for equity Increase in
controlled entity (4,644,964} (17,147 ,206) (4,841 ,443)
Met cash used in investing
activities (8,056,182} (627,168) {17,196 ,650) {4,901 ,489)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from (ssue of ordinary shares 3 666,504 36,606,617 3,666,500 36,606 617
Payment of share issue costs (27,422} (2.150.819) (27.422) (2,150,81%)
Loans Lo / {from) group companies {14,348)
Equity contributions from
outside equity Interest 2,597 649 -
Met cash provided by financing
aclivities 3,639,078 36,953 447 3,624,732 34,355,798
Met Increase f (decrease) in
cash held {16, 720,702) 28604 813 {17,669 170) 27 576,208
Cash at the beginning of the
financial year 31,350,656 1,180,134 29,651,397 493 080
Etfects of exchange rale changes on the
balance of cash held in foreign currencies (1,737,893) 1,565,709 (1,638,748) 1,482,109
Cash at the end of the financial
year 17{a) 12,892,061 31,350 656 10,243,479 29,551,397

This statement of cash Nows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles to the financial stalements.
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> Notes to the Financial Statements

118
{a)

(b)

(€

(d)

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. The financial report is a general
purpose financial reporl which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Acl 2001 which
includes applicable Accounting Standards. Other mandatory professional reporting requirernents {Urgenl |ssues Group Consensus
WViews) have also been complied with. The financial statemenis have been prepared in Australian dollars unless oflhenwise stated,

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are thoss of the consolidated entity, comprising pSivida Limited (the parent entity) and all
entities that pSivida Limited controlled from time to time during the year and at balance date.

Information from the financial statements of subsidiaries is included from the date the parent company obtains control until such
time as control ceases. Whera there 15 loss of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated financial statements include the results
for the part of the reporting perlod during which the parent company has control.

Subsidiary acquisilions are accounted lor using the purchase method of accounting,

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity, using consistent
accounting policles. Adjustments are made to bring Into line any dissimilar accounting policies which may axist.

All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arsing from intra-group transactions, have been
eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered,

Forelgn currencles

Transfaifon of Forefen Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies of entities within the consolidated entity are converted to local currency at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction,

Amounts payable Lo and by the entities within the consolidated entity that are outstanding at balance date and are denominated
in foreign currencies have been converted te local currency using rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial year.

Except for cortain specific hedges and hedges of foreign currency operations, all resulting exchange differences arising on
settlement or re-statement are brought to account In detemmining the profit or loss for the financial year, and transaction costs,
premiums and discounts on fofward currency contracts are deferred and amortised over the life ol the conlract.

Transfation of Accourtls of Cverseas Operalions

All overseas operations are deemed to be self-suslaining as each is financially and operationally independent of pSivida Limited.
The financial reports of overseas operations are lranslated using the current rale method and any exchange differences are taken
directly to the foreign currency translation reserve (Note 14).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and in banks and short-term deposits are stated at nominal value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand, in banks and money market investments readily
convertible to cash within 2 working days, net of cutstanding bank overdraft.

Bank overdrafts ane carried at the principal amount. Interest is charged as an expense as it accrues.
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> Notes to the Financial Statements

(e)

{f

(h)

{n

page 36

r the vear ended 30 June 2005

Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original amount less a provision for any uncollectible debts.

Interest is taken up as income on an accrual basis,

Investments

All non-current investments are carmied al the lower of cost and recoverable amounts,  The carrying amount of non-current
imvestments is reviewed by the Directors at each reporting date.

Recoverable amount

Mon-cument assets are nol carmed at an amount above their recoverable amount, and where camying values exceed this recoverable
amount assets are written down. [n determining recoverable amount the expected nat cash flows have nol been discounted to
their present value,

Property, plant and equipment
Cost
All classes of property, plant and equipment are measured alt cost.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on & straighl-line basis on all properly, plant and equipment, other than freehold land.

Major depreciation periods are;

2005 2004
Leasahold improvements Lease term Lease term
Plant and equipment 3 years A years

Leases

Leasas are classified at thelr inception as either cperating or linance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement
=0 as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ownership,

Operating Lesses
The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all of the risks and benefits of
awnership of the leased item, are recognised as an expense on a straight (ine basis,

Contingznt reatals are recognised as an expense in the financial year in which they are Incurred.

The cost of improvemnents to or on leasehold property is capitalised, disclosed as leasehold improvements, and amortised over the
unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is the shorter,
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Intangibles

Intelfectual Property

Intellectual property represents acquired biotechnology intellectual property through the original and subsequent acquisitions of
sharehcldings in UK based pSiMedica Limited, which owns the BioSilicon™ intellactual property rights royally free. pSiMadica
Limited owns directly the patented rights te BioSilicon™, a porous form of silicon and an enabling platform nanotechnology in
Lhe tlomedical industry,

Intellectual property is recorded at the cost of acquisition and is caried forward as an asset on the expectation that it will lead to
commercialisation. The camying amount of Intang bles is reviewad by the Directors al ezch reporting date,

The direclors gave due consideralion o the lechnical and cormmercial lile of the inlelleclual properly and palenls and licences lo
determing their useful life and determined this to be the lesser of 20 years or the average remaining life of the patents,

Amaortisation Is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write off the cost of the asset over Its expected useful life commencing
with commercial production of products,

Costs associated with new patent applications have been expensed as research and development.

Other nen-cumrent assets

Research and development cosls

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, except where future benefits are expected, beyond any reasonable
doubt, to excecd those costs, Where research and development costs are deferred such costs are amorised over fulure periods
on a basis relaled o expected lulure benefils, Todale, no research and development cosls have been deferred,

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade creditors and other amounts are camied at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the
future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the consolidated entity.

Payables to related parties are carried at the principal amount. Interest, when charged by the lender, is recognised as an expense
an an accrual basis.

Deferred cash settlements are recognised at the present value of the outstanding consideration payable on the acquisition of an
asset discounted at prevalling commercial borrowing rales.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the economic entity has a legal, equitable or constructive obligation to make a fulure sacrifice of
economic benefits to other entities as & result of past transactions or other past events, it is probable that a tuture sacrifice of
economic benefits will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A provision Tor dividends s not recognised as a liability unless the dividends are declared, determined or publicly recommended
on or before the reporting date.
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page 38

r the year ended 30 June 2005

Contributed equity
Ordinary share capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the Company.

Any transaction costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the share proceads
received,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition crterion must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest
Control of the right Lo receive Lhe inlerest paymenl.

Dividends
Control of the right to recelve the dividend payment.

Taxes

Income Tar

Tax-effect accounting is applied using the liability method whereby income tax is regarded as an expense and is calculaled on the
accounting profit atter allowing for permanent differences, To the extent timing differences ocour between the time items are
recognised in the financial statements and when items are taken inte account in determining taxable income, the net related
taxation benefit or llability, calculated at current rates, Is disclosed as 2 fulure Income tax benefit or a provision Tor deferred
income tax. The net fulure income lax benefit relating to tax losses and timing diflerences is not camied forward as an asset
unless the benefit is virtually certain of being realised.

Gowds and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST excepl:

* where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and sevices is nol recoverable [rom Lhe laxalion authorily, in which case the
GST is recognised as part ol the cost of acquisition of the assel or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

» receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authorty is included as part of recelvables or payables in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority.
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Employee entitlements

Provislon |s made for employee enlitlement benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering senvices up to the reporting
date. These benefits include wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave and long senvice leave,

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave and any other employee entitlements expected to be
settled within twalve months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts based on emuneration rates which are
expected to be paid when the liability is seitled. All other employea entillement liabilities are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflow to be made in respect of sernvices provided by employess up to the reporting date. [n
determining the present value of Tuturs cash outflows, the interest rates atlaching to government guarantead securities which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability are used.

Employee entitlements expenses arising in respect of the following categories:

e wages and salafes, non-monelary benefits, annual leave, long service leave, sick leave and other leave entitlements; and

= other types of employee entitlements;

ara charged against profits on a net basis in thair respoctive catogorios.
The value of the employes share option plan deseribed in Mote 19 is not being charged as an employee entitlament expense.

Any contributions made to the superannuation fund by entities within the consolidated entity are chanzed against profits when
due,

Earnings per share (EFS)

Basic EPS s calculated as net profit attributable to members, adjusted to exclude costs of savicing equity (other than dividends)
and preference share dividends, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.
Diluted EPS Is calculated as net profit attributable to members, adjusted for;

s costs of sendicing equity (other than dividends) and preferance share dividends;

& the after lax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been mcognised as
expenses: and

* olher non-discrelionary changes in revenues of expenses during the period that would resull from the dilution of potential
erdinary shares;

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element,

Comparative infarmation
Where necessary, comparalives have been reclassilied and reposilioned for consislency wilh currenl year disclosures.
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page 40

r the vear ended 30 June 2005

LR W LW

Revenue from ordinary activities

Revenues from non-operating activities
Interest
olher persons { corporalions
Other revenue
Total revenues from ordinary activilies

Expenses and losses / (gains)
Expenses
Depraciation and amorlisation of non-current assefs
Borrowing costs
Goedwill on acquisition
Flant and equipment
Leasahold improvements
Included in research and developmenl cosls:
Flant and equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Cther non-current assets
Tedal depreciation and amortisation
of nen-current assels

Wirite oll of borrowing costs
Operating lease charges
Research @nd development costs

{Losses) / gains

Met loss on disposal of propery,
plant and equipment
Foreign currency gain / (loss)

pSivida limited | anncal repart 2005

Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ % %
667,310 325479 599,199 250,427
161 666 ob, A - B8/
B28,976 381,679 599,199 251,314
11,520 11,520 11,520 11,520
973923 - - .
35,8349 23683 36,200 23 h83
7,100 4,187 7,100 4,157
569,071 287 702 -
18717 - -
18,130 19 666 -
1,635,300 346,728 54,820 39,360
1,920 = 1,920 -
97,738 95,772 97,738 95,772
8,287,930 7,011 666 - -
{6,910} - -
(1,623,484) 1,461 368 {1,638,747) 1,461,368
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Income tax

The prima facie tax, using tax rates applicable in the counfiry of operation, on operating loss differs from the income tax provided
in the accounts as follows;

Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
3 3 $ $

Prima facie tax benefit from
ordinary activities (4,5372.716) (2,255,693} (1,784,287) {191 ,302)
Tax effect of permanent differences

Capital expenses - - - -

Other ilems {nel) 3.866 10,637 294 487
Income tax benefit attributable to
ordinary activities {4,533 8500 {2,245 056) (1,783,353) {190, 815)
Future income tax bengfit not
brought to account 4,533 B0 2,245 056 1,783,393 190 815
Income tax exponss
Future income tax benefit from tax losses
not brought to account at balance date a5
realisation of the benefit is not virlually
certain {at 30%) 9,583,564 5,049,704 2,679,083 895 690

This fulure income tax benefit will only be obtained if:

{a) future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefil to be realised;
{b) the conditiens for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with; and

(¢} no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the consolidated entity in realising the benefit.

The Company has efected not to consolidate under the tax consalidation regime.

Dividends paid or provided for on ordinary shares

Mo dividend has been declared or paid during the current financial year or the prior financial year.

The consolidated entity dees not have any franking credits available for current or future years as the consolidated entity is not in
a tax paying position.

Receivables

Current

Other dabtors {i) 709418 310,482 103,347 60618
Amounts receivable from controlled entities - - 16,182 -

709,418 340 482 119,529 60,618

{i} Other debtors include amounts cutstanding lor goods & senvices tax (GST) and value added tax {VAT), These amounls are
non-interest bearing and have repayment terms applicable under the relevant government authorities,
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Other assets
Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ % %
Current
Prepayments 322,933 38,058 174,998 38058
Mon-current
Borrowing costs 34,5659 34,6569 34,559 34,5659
Accumulated amortisalion (34 ,559) (21,120) {34,559) (21,120)
13,439 - 13,439
Other non-current assets (i) 53,061 28,301 -
Accumulated amortisation (53,061) {39,009 -
19,202 - -
32,641 - 13,439

(i} Other non-current assats comprises the fair value of non-cash consideration in pSiOncology made by minority sharehaolders,

This amount has been amortised over 3 years on a straight line basis.

Other financial assets

Noa-current
Shares in controlled entities - - 85,383,940 13,657,129
Controlled entities are accounted for in the consolidated accounts as sat out in Note 1{b).
Investments in controlled entities

Country of 2005 2004 2005 2004

incorporation o %o % 3
pSiMedica Limited [i} UK 100 A44.72 84,183,937 13,657,129
p3lCncology Fte Ltd Singapore 100 a44.72 -
AION Diagnostics Limited Australia 100 - 1,200,003
pSivida UK Limited LK 100 - -
pSivida Inc USA 100 - -
85 383 940 13,657,129

(i} Consolidation occurred in 2004 financial year due to pSivida having more than 0% of the voting righls in pSiMedica.
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(a)

Property, plant and eguipment

Plant and squipment
At cost
Accumulaled amarlisalion

Leasehold improvements
At cosl
Accumulated amortisation

Construction in progress
AL cosl

Total property, planl and equipment

Al cosl
Accumulated amortisation

Reconciliations

nanotechnologies = biomaterials = platform technologies > multiple applications

Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
% $ % $

2,439 455 1,360,533 162,411 119,912

(1,119,916) (G99 D38) (25,904) (59, 704)

1,318 539 660,695 66,507 B, 208

155,799 14,214 21,159 14,214

{30,188) (5,110} (12,210 {5,110

125,611 9,104 2,949 9,104
1,828 513 =

4,423,767 1,374,747 183,570 134,126

(1,150,104) {705 048) (108, 114) {64 814)

3,273,663 669,699 75,456 69,312

Reconciliations of the camying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:

Plant and equipmaent

Cartying amount at beginning of year

Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

Met foreign currency movements

Carnying amount at end of year

Leasehold Improvements

Carnying amount at beginning of year

Additlons
Depreciation

Met foreign currency movemants

Carrying amount at end of year

660,595 400 549 60,208 33,370
1,358,690 549 =850 42,499 50,521
(65,9100 - - -
(605.91M {311 385) (36, 200) {23 683)
{86,976 21 551 : :
1,319,539 650,595 66,507 60,208
9,104 3,736 9,104 3,736
146 978 9 525 6,945 Q525
{25,817 {4157 (7,100 {4,157
{4 ,654) . - .
125,611 9,104 8,949 9,104
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9.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Motes Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ % %
Construction in progress
Carrying amount al beginning of yoar
Addilions 1,204,551 - -
MNet foreign currency movements {f6,038) - g
Carrying amount at end of year 1,828,613 . -
10.  Intangibles
Intellectual property — at cost 56,249,010 7934622 -
Goordwill on acquisition 9.562,151 - -
Accumulated amortisation {973,923) - -
G4 837 238 7,934 622 -

The ultimate recoupment of costs carried forward for intellectual property Is dependent on the successful development and
commercial exploitation of its technology. In accordance with Mote 105}, amortisation will be calculated on a straight-line basis
over its expected wseful lite commencing with commercal production of products.,

11. Payables

Current

Trade creditors (i} 806,047 1,162,281 98,724 99678

Other creditors (1) 1,161,671 738,690 467,594 161 064

Amounts payable to directors and

director-related enlities 28,253 29,910 23,495 29910

Amounts payable Lo other relaled parties 11,849 7,234 11,849 7,234

Amounts payable lo controlled entities - 1,836 -
2,017,820 1,938,115 603,498 297 886

{i} Trade and other creditor amounts represent liabilities tor goods and services provided to the conselidated entity prior to the
end of the financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition,

12. Provisions

Current
Prewision for employes entitlements 19 29,879 - 29 879
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(b)
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(d)

Contributed equity
Issued capital

Ordinary shares, fully paid

Movements in share capital

Balance at beginning of year
Issued during the year
Share placements
Share purchase plan
Options exercised
Share Issue cosls
Balance at end of year

Share options

Exercise
price

= nanctechnologies > biomaterials = platform technologies > multiple applications

Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 5 § 3

107,883 835 49,957 982 107,883,835 49,957 982

2008 2004 2005 2004
Number Number % $

153,937,785 103,916,213 49,957,982 15,602,183

49,804 381 38,000,000 54,286,775 33,946,640
. 3,891,572 : 933,977

15,570,000 8,130,000 3,666,500 1,626,000

: - (27,422) {2.150,818)
219,312,166 153937785 107,883,835 49 957 987

Unlisted options $0.20
Unlisted options $0.50
Unlisted options $0.65
Unlisted options *  $0.40
Unlisted options *  $0.20
Unlisted options *  $0.61
Unlisted options  $1.09
Unlisted options = $1.18
Unlisted options *  $1.02
Unlisted options *  $0.80
Unlisted options *  $0.80

Expiry Balance at Issuad Exercised Cancelled Balance at
date beginning during during during end of year
of year the year the year the year
Number Mumber Number Mumber Number
aliz2mn4 12,570,000 - (12,570,000)
311204 150,000 - (1560 ,0:00)
a1z 150,000 - {150,000)
Al L2 2,200,000 - (2,200,000)
311204 500,000 {500,000
311207 4,395,000 - - (20,000) 4,375,000
BHIDE - 2,050 000 - . 2,050,000
5809 = 9,114,637 = (59,824) 9,064,713
ilzos B 200,004 - . A00.000
31/1 208 - 115,000 . - 115,000
3153410 3 202,000 (25 000) 32,177,000

19,965,000 14,681,537 (15,570,000) (104 824) 18,971,713

* Options issued pursuant to the Company™s Employee Share Option Plan (ESOF).

Terms and conditions of confributed equity

Oridfinary shares

Ordinary shares have the rght to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the Company, Lo participate in the
proceaeds from the sale of all surplus assats in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held.

Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at 8 meeting of the Company.
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for the year endec 30 June 2005
14. Reserves
Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ % %

Forelgn cumency translation (272,067) 78,220 -

Option premium 292 828 292 B8
20,761 78,220 202 828

{a) Foreign cumrency transkation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of self-sustaining foreign operations.

Balance at beginning of year 78,220 235 -
Gain / tloss) on translation of

foreign controlled entities {350,287} 77,985 -
Balance at end of year {272,067) 78 220 -

{1:3] Oplion premium resernve
The option premium reserve |s used Lo recognise the value of oplions issued of a capital nalure.

Balance at beginning of year - - -
Increase on issue of options 292 R28 - 292 B28
Balance al end of year 292 828 - 292 828

15, Accumulated losses

Balance at beginning of yaar (13,190,459) (2.507,264) {6,865,015) {6,227,340)
Met loss attributable to

members of the Company (14, f26,523) (3,683 ,2056) {5,947 623} (637 ,6785)
Balance at end of year (27,916 ,982) (13,190,459 {12,812, 638) (6,865,015)

16. Outside equity interest
Recancillation of outside equity interest in controlled entities

Balance al beginning of year 1,583,200 204 364 -
Share of subsidiary acquisition - 3,622,319 -
Share of current year loss {399,196) (3.835,771) -
Share of foreign cumancy

transtation reserve 79,361 90,489 -
Effect of change in shareholding {1,263,365) 1,501 809 -
Balance at end of year - 1,583,200 B
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MNotes to the statement of cash flows
Reconciliation of cash

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks and investments in money market
Instruments. Cash al the end of Lhe financial yesr as shown in Lhe slalemernl of cash News is reconciled Lo Lhe related ilems (n

the statement of financial position as follows:

Consalidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
3 5 $ 3
Cash on hand 1,637,560 665,355 198,215 260,016
Deposits at call 11,254,501 30,685,301 10,045,264 29,291 381
12,892 061 31 350 k56 10,243,479 29,561 397

Reconciliation of loss from ordinary activities after related income tax to net cash flows used in operating activities

Loss from ordinary activities after tax (15,125,719 (7,518,976} (5,947 623) {637,675)
Depraciation 631,727 315,542 43,300 27,840
Amortisation 1,003,573 31.186 11,520 11,520
Write off of borrowing costs 1,920 - 1,920
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equiprment 6910 -
Exchange rate adjustments on
balance of cash held in foreign currencles 1,623 484 {1,461 368) 1.638,747 (1,482 104)
Changes in net assets and liabilities
{Increase) f decrease in assets:
Trade and other receivables (408,904) (238,081} (42, 730) (29,256)
Frepaymenls [290,102) (12,061) (136,040) {12 061)
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities:
Trade and other credilors 222634 1,062,292 303,775 243640
Provisions 29,879 . 29,879 -
Met cash flows used in operating activities {12,304, 598) {7,821, 466) (4,007, 252) {1 878,101)

Mon-cash linancing and investing activities

In August 2004 the Company issued 49 804 381 shares at a value of $1.09 each to former pSiMedica Limited shareholders as

part consideration for the acquisition of the remaining interest in pSiMedica Limited.,
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£

Expenditure commitments

Motes Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ % %

Operating leases (non-cancellable)

Mot later than one year 325,609 95,772 38,935 95, 772

Laler Lhan one year and nol

later than five years 122,370 - - -

447 879 95,772 38,935 95,772

Employee entitlements

The aggregate employes liability recognised and included in the financial statements is as follows:

Provision for employee
entitlerments (cumant) 12 29,879 - 29,879

Number Mumibrer Number Number

Mumber of employees at
end of financlal year 36 20 9 5

Superannuation

Under government regulations the Company is legally required to contribute 9% of employees’ gross income to an approved
superannuation fund. Employees are entitled to contribute additional amounts to the fund at their own discretion. The Company
makes the required contribution to each employes's nominated Superannuation Fund.

The consolidated entity does not operate a defined benefits superannuation fund.
Contributicns by the consolidated entity of up to 9% of employess’ wages and salaries are legally enforceable in Australia.

LInited Kingdom subsidiany, pSiMedica Limited, operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for
the year under the defined contribulion scheme was £79 411 ($A195,863) (2004: £30,660 ($A75.149)).

Employee share oplion plan (ESOP}

An employee share option plan has been established where directors and employvess of the consolidated entity are issued with
options over the ordinary shares of pSivida Limited. Shareholders reapproved the plan at the AGM held on 17 November 2004,
The options, issued for nil consideration, are issued in accordance with performance guidelines establishad by the directors of
pSivida Limited,

Employee share aplions camy no righls te dividends and no voting rights,
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19.  Employee entitlements {(continued)

2005 2004

Number Number
Balance at beginning of financial year a 7,095,000 2,700,000
Granted during financial year b 12,631,537 4 395 (K]
Exercised during financial year C {A400,000)
Transferred during financial year d {2,300,000)
Forfeited during financial year e [104,824) 3
Balance at end of financial year f 16,921,713 7,095, (K]

(&) Balance at beginning of financial year
Options = series Mumber Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
2005 date date date price
Issued 31 December 2001 2,200,000 31i12/01 13/10403 31712104 $0.40
Issued 1 November 2002 500,000 111402 11103 311204 $0.20
Issued 21 October 2003 250,000 21/10/03 21/10/03 31/12/07 $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 250,000 211003 211704 311207 $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 2,345,000 21/10/03 21/4/04 31/12/07 $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 350,000 21/10/03 211404 31112107 $0.61
Issued 21 Octobar 2003 400,000 2111003 21010403 3nzng 10.61
lssued 21 Qetobar 2003 ADD D00 21/10/03 21710404 3111207 $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 A00 000 21/1M03 211005 31/12/07 $0.61
7,095 000
(b)  Granted during financial year

Options — series Mumber Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
2005 date date date price
Issued 5 August 2004 175,000 S804 BiBI04 HI8I09 $1.18
Issued 5 August 2004 50,000 S/804 BIRING HIRIND $1.18
Issued & August 2004 2,889 537 5804 B/BIO4 5/8/09 $1.18
Issued 22 Apiil 2005 200,000 2214105 2214/05 2214/10 $1.02
Issued 22 Aprdl 2005 115,000 2214005 2218005 31/12/08 $0.80
Issued 22 April 2005 50,000 2214105 22{4006 3173710 $0.80
Issued 22 Apiil 2005 450,000 2214005 22/4i05 3143710 $0.80
lssued 22 Aprl 2005 2,752 000 221405 221406 330 $0.80
Issued 22 Apdl 2005 AS0,000 221405 22/4i07 31/3/10 $0.80

12,631,537
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Employee entitlements (continued)
Granted during financial year (continued)

cial Statements

al= |
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Optiens - series MNumber Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
2004 date date date price
lssyed 21 October 2003 250,000 2110003 21/10/03 3lna2miy $0.61
Issued 21 Oclober 2003 250,000 211003 216704 L1207 $0.61
Issued 21 Oclober 2003 2,345,000 21/1 003 217404 ALN207 $0.61
lssued 21 Oclober 2003 350,000 2110003 21104 31nz2n7 $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 400,000 21103 21/10/03 31207 $0.61
lssued 21 Oclober 2003 ADD,000 2110003 21/10/04 arnznd $0.61
Issued 21 Oclober 2003 400,000 2110003 21/10/05 31/12/07 $0.61
4,395,000
Exercised during financial year
Options = series Mumber Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
2005 date date date price
Issued 31 December 2001 {150,000) 31/1 201 13/10/03 3171204 $0.40
lssued 1 November 2002 (250,000) 111102 111103 A1/12104 $0.20
{A00,000)
Transferred during financial year
Options — serles Number Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
2005 date date date price
lssued 31 December 2001 {2,050,000) 311201 13/10/03 311204 $0.40
Issued 1 Movember 2002 (250,000) 111/02 1/11/03 31/12/04 $0.20
{2,300,000)
Forfeited during financial year
Optiens = series MNumber Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
2005 date date date price
lssued 21 October 2003 (20,000) 211003 21/404 31207 $0.61
Issued 5 August 2004 (59,824 BIE04 5804 5209 $1.18
Issued 22 April 2005 {25,000) 2214005 2214106 31/3/10 $0.80
{104,824)
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Employee entitlements (continued)
Balance at end of financial year

Options — series Number Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
2005 date date date price
lssued 21 Octobar 2003 250,000 21110003 21/10/03 31712107 $0.61
Issued 21 Oclober 2003 250,000 21/10403 2117104 31207 1061
Issued 21 October 2003 2,325 000 2110803 21/4/04 3207 $0.61
Issued 21 Octobar 2003 350,000 21/10/03 2111404 3112007 $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 A00 000 2110803 21/10/03 311207 $0.61
Issued 21 Octobar 2003 A0 000 21110803 21710404 annznad $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 A00 000 21/10/03 21/10/05 31712107 $0.61
lssued 5 August 2004 175,000 5/8/04 5/8/04 H8/09 $1.18
Issued & August 2004 0,000 H/8/04 BI85 H809 $1.18
Issued 5 August 2004 8,829 713 /804 BIRI04 HI809 $1.18
Issued 22 April 2005 200,000 2214105 2214105 221410 $1.02
Issued 22 April 2005 115 000 2214105 2214105 31/12/08 +0.80
Issued 22 Apil 2005 50,000 22105 221/06 31/3/10 $0.80
lssued 22 Aprl 2005 A50 000 2214105 22/4/05 314310 $0.80
Issued 22 Aprl 2005 2,227 000 2214105 2213406 317310 $0.80
lssued 22 April 2005 A50 000 2214105 221407 3143110 $0.80
16,921,713
Options = series Mumber Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
2004 date date date price
Issued 31 December 2001 2,200 000 31/12/01 1310403 3171204 $0.40
Issued 1 November 2002 500,000 L1102 111403 31712104 $0.20
Issued 21 Octobar 2003 250,000 21/10/03 21/10/03 31712107 $0.61
lssued 21 Octobar 2003 250,000 21110403 2177104 31/12/07 $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 2,345 000 21110803 21/4/04 31112107 $0.61
Issued 21 Octobar 2003 350,000 2110403 2111404 312007 $0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 ADO 000 21/10/03 2110403 32007 $0.61
Issued 21 Octobar 2003 AQO 000 2111403 21710404 3112107 t0.61
Issued 21 October 2003 A00 000 21/10/03 21/10/05 31712107 $0.61
7,095 000
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Contingent liabilities
The consolidated entity had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2005.

Subsequent events
On 25 July 2005 the Company announced that it had appointed Dr David Mazzo as a non-executive director of the Company,

On 27 July 2045 that Company announced that it had appointed Mr Michael Rogers &5 a non-executive director of the Company.

On 15 August 2005 the Company announced that it was in negotiations and undertaking due diligence to acquire 8 US based
specialised drug delivery company through the issue of American Depositary Receipts {(ADRs).

On 23 August 2005 the Company announced that it had raised US$4.2 million (AU$5.6 million) before costs via the private
placement of 665,000 Amercan Depositary Receipts (ADRs) to predominantly US investors at US$6.50 each {AU$R.61). Each
ADR represents 10 ordinary shares, The ADRs have an attached 1 for 10, 3 year warant exercisable al US$12.50 par ADR,

Earnings per share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share:

Consolidated
2005 2004
$ $
Met loss (15.125.719) (7.518,976)
Ad justments:
Met loss attributable to outside equity interest 399,195 3835771
Losses used in calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share {14,726,523) {3,683,205)
Number MNumber
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating basic eamings per share 207,802,540 126,990 066
Effect of dilutive securities
Share oplions -
Adjusled weighled average number of ordinary shares used
in calculating basic and diluted eamings per share 207,802,540 126,990 066

Since the end of the financial year the Company has issued &,650,000 ordinary shares and F80.000 options expirng 5 August
2008, exercisable at US$1,25 each, pursuant to a Private Invesiment in Public Equily {PIPE},

There have been no other conversions to, calls of, or subscriptions for ordinary shares or issues of polential ordinary shares since
the reporting date and before the completion of this annual report,
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Director and executive disclosures

Details of specified directors and specified executives

The specified direclors of pSivida Limited during the year were:

Dr Roger Brimblecombe — Non-Exzculive Chairman

Mr Gavin Reros — Managing Director

Dt Roger Aston — Director, Strategy

Mr Slephen Lake - Non-Execulive Direclor (appointed 30 July 2004)
Ms Alison Ledger — Mon-Executive Director (appointed 30 July 2004)
Mrs Madine Donovan - Former Finance Director {resigned 30 July 2004)

The specified execulives of the consolidaled enlily during the yedr were:

Prot Leigh Canham — Chief Scientific Officer, pSiMedica Limited

Mr Aaron Finlay - Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer

Dr Anna Kluczewska — Managing Director, AION Diagnostics Limited
Mr Steve Connor — Operations Director, pSiMedica Limited

Dr Jill Ogden — Commercialisation Director, pSiMedica Limited

Remuneration of specified directors and specified executives

Rermuneralion policy
The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Direclors of pSivida Limited is responsible for determining and reviewing
compensation arrangements for the directors, the managing director and the executive team, The Remuneration Committee
assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of the emoluments of such officers on a periodic basis by reference to
ralavant employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefil from the retention of
a high quality Board and executive team,
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for the year

23. Director and executive disclosures (continued)
(b} Remuneration of specified directors and specified executives (continued)

{ii} Remuneraiion of specified directors and specified execufives

Specified directors
Primary Post- Other Equity Total Total
employment benefits cash-based
Salary Bonus Super- Options* remuneration
and fees annuation )]
% $ $ $ $ $ $
2005
Dr R
Brimblecombe 224 459 25,000 229,296 AFB, 755 249,459
Mr G Rezos 348 062 75,000 10,9205 1,361,127 1,795,094 433,967
Or R Aston 315 683 25,000 8438 1,189 558,592 908,202 350,310
Mr S Lake 22917 91,718 114,635 22917
Ms A Ledger 27,500 2475 91,718 121 693 29,975
Mrs N Donovan Z,083 = 185 > 2,271 2,271
Total 940,704 125,000 22,006 1,189 2,332 451 3,421,350 1,088,829
2004
DrR
Brimblecombe 152 992 - 145,200 298,192 152,992
Mr G Reros 363 881 250,000 27320 435 600 1,076,801 641,201
Dr R Aston 302822 40,000 40,711 181 500 565,033 383,533
Mrs M Conovan 90,325 - 2,250 127,050 219625 92,575
Total 910,020 290,000 70,281 880 350 2,159,651 1,270,301
*These options had no taxable value at the date of issue.
Specified executives
Primary Post- Other Equity Total Total
empleyment benefits cash-based
Salary Bonus Super- Oplions* remuneration
and fees annuation (i
$ $ $ 5 $ $ $

2005
Prof L Canham 193 780 - 22553 6,056 353 524 575,913 222,389
Mr A Finlay 144 572 32,600 13,135 370,396 be0603 190,207
Dr A Kluczewska 208 333 10,000 299 808 518,141 218,333
Mr S Connor 181,146 - 21,738 10,612 143,751 357,247 213,426
Dr J Ogden 169 8l6 20378 b,0e0 143,751 340,005 196,254
Total 297 647 42,500 77804 22,728 1,311,230 2,351,909 1,040,679
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Director and executive disclosures {continued)
Remuneration of specified directors and specified executives (continued)

Remuneraiion of specified direcfors and specified execufives (continued)

Primary Post- Other Equity Total Total
empleyment benelits cash-based
Salary Bonus Super- Options* remuneration
and fees annuation (i
3 $ $ $ % $ $

2004
Dr A Kluczewska 143600 25,000 - - 295672 A64,172 168,600
Prof L Canham 180,637 = 35410 3,832 219,779 219,779
Mr 5 Connor 176,773 - 23683 6,941 207 397 207.397
Dr R Saffie 130,742 - 15,441 2,307 148,490 148,490
Dr J Ogden 102,873 - 11,581 3,072 117 526 117,526
Total 734,525 25,000 86,115 16,152 295572 1,157 364 8&1,792

* These options had no taxable value at the date of issue.

(i} During tha year options were granted lo directors and specified executives in August 2004 in respact of the pSiMedica
acquisition and April 2005 in respect of annual parformance reviews, pursuant to the Company's Employee Share Option Plan,
which have been included as equity options remuneration above. Thase options have been valued using the Black Scholes
Option Valuation Model, which takes into account time value and the volatility of the stock price.

A lolal of 8,251,000 oplions were Issued Lo directors and employess In August 2004, The oplions are exercisable at §1.18,
being an 8% premium to the share price al the time of the grant, and may be exercised belween the date of grant and expiry

on 5 August 2009,

A total of 3,152,000 oplions wers issued to employees in April 2005, The options are exercisable at $0.80, being a 10%
premium to the share price at the time of the grant. The options are subject to varving vesting and performance conditions

and expire on 31 March 2010.

Remuneration options granted and vested during the year
During the financial year options were granted as equity compensation benefits to certain specilied directors and specified
execulives as disclosed below, The options were issued free of charge. Each option entitles the holder Lo subscribs Tor one fully
paid ordinary share in the entity at the exercise price stated below., The oplions may only be exercised after the vesting date stated
below, and expire on the dates shown below. Vesting of the options is dependent on the achievermnenl of certain key performance
criteria where indicated. The key performance criteria to be met are in respect of certain employee performance targels,
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Director and executive disclosures (continued)

Remuneration options granted and vested during the year (continued)

Share opitiens issued by pSivida Limited

Specified directors
Dr R Bnmblecombe
Mr G Rezos

Or R Aston

Mr 5 Lake

Ms A Ledger

Total

Specified executives
Prof L Canham

Mr A Finlay

Dr A Kluczewska

Mr & Connor

Dr J Owden

Total

Terms and conditions for each grant

Vested Granted Grant Value Value of  Exercise  Vesting Expiry
date per underlying  price date date
option at  share at  per share
grant grant
data** date
Number Number % § 5

00,000 500,000 5Aug 04 $0.459 $1.09 $1.138 5AugD4 5 Aug 09
2,760,000 2,750,000 5 Aug 04 $0.459 $1.09 £1.18 5Aug04 5 Aug 09
1,000,000 1000000  5Aug04  $0.459 $1.09 $1.18 5 Aug 04 5 Aug 09
200,000 200,000 5 Aug 04 $0.459 $1.09 $1.18 5Aug04 5 Aug 09
200,000 200,000 5 Aug 04 30.459 $1.09 $1.18 5HAug 04 5 Aug 09

4,660,000 4,650,000
700,000 700,000 5 Aug 04  $0.459 $1.09 $1.18 54ug04 5 Aug 09
125000 22 Aproa .26 0.7 $0.80 22 Apr 06 31 Mar 10
FO0,000 FOO 000 5 Aug 04 §0.459 $1.09 £1.18 5 Aug 04 5 Aug 09
200,000 22 Apr05  $0.261 $0.75 $0.80 22 AprO6 31 Mar 10
100,000 100,000 5Aug 04 $0.459 $1.09 $1.18 5Aug04 5 Aug 09
ADO.O00 125000 22 Apr05 30.261 $0.75 $0.80 22 Apr 06 31 Mar 10
300,000 300,000 5 Aug 04 30.459 $1.09 $1.18 5Aug04 5 Aug 09
* 125000 22 Apr05  $0.261 $0.75 $0.80 22 Apr 06 31 Mar 10
300,000 300,000 5 Aug 04 30.459 $1.09 $1.18 5Aug 04 5 Aug 09
*125000 22 Apr03  30.261 $0.75 $0.80 22 Apr 06 31 Mar 10

2,500,000 2,800,000
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Director and executive disclosures {continued)

Remuneration options granted and vested during the year (continued)

Share options issued by ANON Diagnostics Limited

Terms and conditions for each grant

Vested Granted Grant Value Value of  Exercise Expiry
date per  underlying  price date
option at  share at  per share
grant grant
date** date
MNumber Mumber 5 i 3
Specified directors
Mr G Rezos - *250,000 3 Feb 05 $0.40 $0.40 Nil 3 Feb 08
Dr R Aston *250,000 3 Feb 05 $0.40 $0.40 il 3 Feb 08
Total - SO0, 000
Specified execulives
Prof L Canham - *35,840 3 Feb 05 $0.40 $0.40 Nil 3 Feb 08
Mr A Finlay - 98,760 3 Feb 05 £0.40 $0.40 Mil 3 Feb 08
Dr A Kluciewska - *395040 3 Feb 05 $0.40 0,40 Mil 3 Feb 08
Total - 559,640

* Vesting of these options |s subject to performance conditions
** Oplions have been valued using the Black Scholes Option Valuation Model, which takes into account time value and the

volatility of the stock price,

Shares issued on exercise of remuneration options

Specified directors
Mrs M Donovan

Tatal

Shares Issued Amount paid  Amount unpaid
per share per share
Number 3 %
250,000 $0.20 -
150,000 $0.40 -
400,000
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Director and executive disclosures (continued)
Specified directors’ and specitied executives' equity holdings
Fully paid ordinary shares of pSivida Limited

Balance at Granted as Net other Balance at
1 July 2004 remuneration change 30 Jun 2005
Number Number Number Number
Specified directors
Dr R Brimblecombe 320,833 124,234 445 067
Mr G Rezos 10,895,657 423,625 11,319,282
Dr R Aston 3,080,833 4,002,753 7,093 586
Mr S Lake * - - -
Ms A Ledger * 2,000,004 {100,000} 1,900,000
Mrs M Donovan ** 54,333 - 54 333
Total 16,361,656 4 450 612 20812 268
Specified executives
Prof L Canham 3,909,579 3,909,579
Mr A Finlay -
Dr A Kluczewska - -
Mr 5 Connor 189,000 189,000
Dr J Ogden -
Total 4,008 5749 4088 574

* Opening balance at date of appointment
** Closing balance at date of resignation
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23. Director and executive disclosures (continued)
(&) Specified directors’ and specified executives' equity holdings (continued)
Share options issued by pSivida Limited

Balance at Granted as Net afher Balance at
1 July 2004 remuneration change 30 Jun 2005
Number Number Number Number
Specified directors
Dr R Brimblecombe 1,000,000 504,000 (550,8589) 949,111
Mr G Rezos 5,450,000 2,750,000 (4,228,970} 3,971,030
Dr R Aston 4,500,000 1,000,000 (3,950,889) 1,549,111
Mr S Lake * - 200,000 42,061 242 061
Ms A Ledger * - 200,000 - 200,000
Mrs M Donovan ** 850,00 - - 850, 1]
Total 11,800,000 4,650 000 (8,688 687) 7,761,313
Specified executives
Prof L Canham - 825,000 39,289 854 289
Mr A Finlay 900,000 - 900,000
Dr A Kluczewska 1,200,000 225,000 - 1,425,000
Mr S Connor - AZ5 000 19,645 444 645
Dr J Ogden - A25 000 129,708 554,708
Tolal 1,200,000 3,100,000 188,647 4 488 647
* Opening balance at date of appointment
** Closing balance at date of resignation
Share oplions issved by AION Diagnostics Limited
Balance at Granted as Net other Balance at
L July 2004 remuneration change 30 Jun 2005
Number Number Number Number
Specified directors
Or R Brimblecombe - £ 5 =
Mr G Rezos - 250,000 - 250, (K]
Dr R Aston - 250,000 . 250,000
Mr s Lake * - -
Ms A Ledger * - -
Mrs M Donovan ** - - - -
Total - B0 000 - 500, (00
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Director and executive disclosures (continued)
Specified directors’ and specitied executives' equity holdings (continued)
Share opiliens issued by AION Diagnostics Limifted

Balance at Granted as Net other Balance at
1 July 2004 remuneration change 30 Jun 2005
Number Number Number Number
Specified executives
Prof L Canham - 65,840 - 65,840
Mr A Finlay . 98,760 - 98,760
Dr A Kluczewska - 395,040 - 395,040
Mr & Connor - - -
Dr J Ogden . . - -
Total - 529,640 - 559 640

* Opening balance at date of appointment
** Closing balance at date of resignation

Other transactions with specified directors
All transactions with related pafies are made on nomal commercial ferms and conditions except where indicated.

Consultancy fees and other payments of Nil (2004: $341 362) were paid to Aymon Pacific Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mr
G Rezos, and have been included in directors” remuneration above,

Consultancy fees and other payments of $319,941 (2004: $44.000) were paid to Mewtonmore Biosciences Ply Ltd, a company
controlled by Dr R Asten. The portion of this amount relating to sernvices performed by Dr Aston has been included in directors’
remuneration above.

Consultancy fees of $2,083 (2004, $71,858) were paid to Blackwood Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mrs M Donovan, and have
been included In directors' remuneration above,

An amount of £220,689 (A$544 320) (2004 £186,682 (AF457 567)) was paid or payable to QinetiCt Limited, a shareholder of
pSivida Limited and former shareholkder of pSiMedica Limited, for the use of [aboralory Tacilities and for patent filing and
administration,

During the year $114,732 {2004; $78,068) was paid to Blake Dawson Waldron (BDW) for various routine arm's length legal
services. BDW s a national Australian firm with over 180 parthers. One of those partners s a relative of a pSivida director,

An amount of Mil (2004: $12,637) was paid to Viaticus Capital Ltd, a company controlled by Mr G Rezos, for sublease of BGC
Centre office space. A further amount of $332, 085 (2004: Nil) was paid to Viaticus Capital Ltd for consultancy fees and ofher
payments, and has been included in directors’ remuneration above.

An amount of $125,982 (2004; $149 489 was paid to Albion Capital Partners, of which Mr G Rezos is a partner, for sublease
of BGE Cenfre office space. A further amount of $63 360 (2004: Nil) was paid to Albion Capital Partners for financial analyst
sevices,

Amaunts owing to directors, director-related parties and other related parties at 30 June 2005 were $50,102 (2004: $37,145),
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Consolidated pSivida Limited
2005 2004 2005 2004
k3 $ % $
Auditor of the pareat entify
Audit or review of the financial report 24 240 16,500 24240 16,504
Olher general advice 1,020 6,000 1,020 65,000
25,260 22 500 25,260 22,51
Other auditors
Audit or review of the financial report 42,423 30,393
Taxation services 9,496 -
Other non-audit services in relation to
LS SEC and NASDAQ requiraments on
listing and annual lodgements 638,768 - 638,768
Other general advice 4,936 - 4,936
695,623 30,393 643,704
The auditor of pSivida Limited is Ernst and Young.
Segment information
Business segment — primary segment
The consolidated entity operates in only one business segmenl, being the biotechnology sector,
Geographic segment - secondary segment
Segment revenues Segment assets Acquisition of segment
assefs
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ $ $ £ $
Australia . BB8 11429117 29,733,723 56,920 4,501,489
United Kingdom 161 666 55312 68593088 8145493 61390641 3,696,163
Singapore i = 1,934,243 3,299,932 20,836 =
Unallocated 667,310 325479 - .
Eliminations - - {21,135} {812 000) {5,501,723)
Consolidated 828,976 381679 82035313 40367058 61468397 3,096,229
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Financial instruments

Interest rate risk
Motes Floating Fixed Non-interest Weighted
Interest rate Interest rate baaring Total average
interest ate
$ $ $ $ %
2005
Financial assefs
Cash 17ia 12,528926 200,000 163,135 12,892,061 2.87
Trade and other receivables & - 709418 709,418 -
12,528,926 200,000 872553 13,601,479
Financial liabilities
Trade creditors and accruals 11 - - 2,017 820 2017820
2004
Financial assels
Cash 17(a) 31,350,656 - - 31,350,656 4.4
Trade and other recelvables & - 340 482 340 482
31,350,666 = 340 482 31,691,138
Flnancial flabiiitles
Trade creditors and accruals 11 1,938,115 1938115
MNet fair values

The net fair values of the financial assets and liabilities at balance date approximate the camying amounts in the financial
statements, except where specifically stated.

Credit risk exposura

The consdidaled enlily's maximurm exposure 1o credil risk Lo each class of recognised linancial assel is LIhe carrying amount, nel
of any provisions for doubtful debts, of those assets as indicated in the balance sheat,

Impacts of adopting Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

Management of the transition to AIFRS

pSivida Limited will be required to prepare Tnancial statements that comply with Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“AIFRS”) for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, Accordingly, pSivida's first
half-year report prepared under AIFRS will be for the halfyear reporting pedod ended 31 December 2005, and its first annual
financial report prepared under AIFRS will be for the year ended 30 June 2006,

In 2004 the Company commenced a review of accounting policies in preparation for managing the transition to AIFRS. Priority
has been given lo considering the preparallon of an opening balance sheel in acoordance with AIFRS as at 1 July 2004, the
Company’s transition date to AIFRS. This will form the basis of accounting for AIFRS in the future and is required when the
Company prepares jts first fully AIFRS compliant financial report for the year ended 30 June 2006,

pSivida Himited | gnnval repart 2005



27.
(b}

()
(]

(i}

{1ii)

(i

= nanctechnologies > biomaterials = platform technologies > multiple applications

Impacts of adopting Australian eguivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
The likely impacts of AIFRS on the results and financial position of the Company and the consolidated entity

Set out below are the key areas where accounting policies are expected to change on adoption of AIFRS and the likely impacts
on the cument year resull and financial poesition of the Company and consolidated entity had the financial statements been
prepared using AIFRS, based an the directors” accounting policy decislons current at the date of this linancial report. Readers of
the financial report should note that the disclosures below represent the Company™s best estimates of the quantitative impact of
the AIFRS implementation at the date of this report. The actual effects of AIFRS transition may differ from these estimates due
to further developments in AIFRS and interpratations thereof issued by the standard setters and IFRIC or emerging accepted
practice in the interpretation and application of AIFRS and UIG Interpretations, which may resull in changes to the accounting
policy decisions made by Lhe directors and, consequently, Lhe Hkely impacts oullined below,

The directors may, at any time until the completion of the consolidated entity’s first AIFRS compliant financial report, elect to
ravisil, and where considerad necessary, revise the accounting policies applled in preparing Lhe disclosures below,

Adjustments lo balance sheel items under AIFRS (net of lax)

Intangities

Under AASE 3 Business Combinations, goodwill would not be permitied to be amortised but instead is subject to impairment
testing on an annual basis or upon triggers which may indicate a potential impairment. As a result accomulated amortisation of
$973,923 (Company: NIl (all expensed durdng the 2005 year) would be added back to the value of Intangibles.

Share-tased payments

Under AASB 2 Share-Based Payment, equity-settled share-Dased payments in respect of equily instruments issued after 7
Movember 2002 thal were unvested as at 1 January 2005 are measured at fair value at grant date. The falr value determined at
grant date of equity-settied share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
estimated number of equity Instruments thal will vest. As a consequence, contrbuted equity will Increase by $396 677
{Company: $396,677) for the financial year ended 30 June 2005,

Foraign currancy fransialion ressme

The directors have elected to set the translation reserve to zero as at AIFRS transition as permitted under AASE 1 First-Time
Adoption of Australlan Equivalents to Intemational Financial Reporting Standards. This results in the transfer of $78,220
{Company: Mil} from the foreign currency trandation reserve to retained eamings as at AIFRS transition,

Accumuialed fosses

With limited exceptions, adjustments required on first-lime adoption of AIFRS are recognised directly in accumulated losses al
the date of transition to AIFRS. The cumulative effect of these adjustments for the consolidated entity will be an increase in
opening accumulated losses of $78,220 (Company: Nil),
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Impacts of adopting Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Adjustments to current year loss under AIFRS (net of tax)

Intangibies

Uinder AA58 3 Business Combinations, goodwill would nol be permitted Lo be amorlised bul Instead is subject Lo Impaimment
testing on an annual basis or upon triggers which may indicate a potential impairment. As a resull amortisation expense ol
$973,923 {Company; Nil) would be added back to the net loss for the year.

Share-based payments

Under AASE 2 Share-Based Faymnent, equily-sellled share-based paymenls in respecl of equily inslrumenls issued afler
# November 2002 that were unvested as at 1 January 2005 are measured al fair value st grant date. The fair value determined
at grant date of equity-settied share-basad payments s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
estimated number of equity instruments that will vest, As a consequence, an additional employee benefit expense of $309 642
{Company: $309,542) and consultancy fees expense of $87 035 (Company $87,035) will be recognised in the prafit and loss
far the financial year ended 30 June 2005,

Other impacts

Management has decided to apply the exemption provided in AASH 1 Hrst- fime Aoopiion of Ausiralian Equivalents fo infernations!
Fingncial Reporting Standards which permits entities not to restate business combinations under that occurred prior to the date of
transition to AIFRS. Business combinalions cccuming after the date of transition will be subject to the provisions of AASHE 3
Business Combinations.

Management has decided to apply the exemption provided in AAS8 1 Firsf-Time Agopiion of Ausiralian Eguivalents o infernations!
Financial Reporting Standards which permits entities not to apply the requirements of AASE 132 Financial nstruments: Presentation
and Disclosures and AASE 139 Financial Instruments: Recagnition and Measurement for the financial year ended 30 June 2005,
The standards will be applied from 1 July 2005, Management (s in the process of determining the impact that adopting the
standards would have on the financial statements of the consolidated entily.

Under AASE 136 impairment of Assafs, the consolidated entity's assats, including goodwill would be tested for impairment as part
of the cash generating unit to which they belong, and any impairment losses recognised in the income statement, At this slage
in the Company's review process the Company is not aware of any impairment issues that would result in a material adjustment
to the financial statements,

Mo material impacts are expected to the cash flows presented under current AGAAP on adoption of AIFRS.

Acquisition of minority interest

During the year the Company purchased minority interests in controlled entity pSiMedica Limited. Under current AGAAP this
acquisition has been accounted for separately from other acquisitions {that is, as a step acquisition, which involved the separate
determination and mcognition of the fair values of the net assets of the subsidiary and any goodwill arising on the acquisition).

AASE 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Stalements requires minority Interests to be classified as aquity, Consequently
the acquisition by the Company of additional ownership interests in pSiMedica Limited represents an equity transaction. As such,
accounting for the transaction as a step acquisition is inappropriate.  The financial effect of the adjustment required on the
restatemnant of the 30 June 2005 accounts is yot to be determined.
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> Directors’ Declaration

The directors declare that:

@b inthe directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and when they
fall due and payable;

[k in the directors” opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
Including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the
Company and the consolidated entity; and

(c) the directors have been given the declarations required by s 295A of the Comorations Act 2001,

Slgned In accordance wilth a resolution of the direclors made pursuant o s 295(5) of the Comporalions Act 2001.

On behalf of the directors

@_,Lk Ao

Dr R Brimblecombe

Mon-Executive Chairman

Porth, 13 Soptembor 2005
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Australia

GPRO Box M838
Pacth YA 6843

Independent audit report to members of pSivida Limited

Scope

The firnancial repory, and directors” responsibility

The financial report comprises the saiement of financial position, starement of financial performance,
statemient of cash Mows, accompanying notes 1o the financial statements, and the direcions” declaration for
pSivida Limited (the company) and the consolidated entity, for the year ended 30 June 2005, The
consolidated entity comprises both the company and the enfities it controlled during tha vear.

The dircctorsof the company are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and fair view
of the financial position and performance of the company and the corsolidated entity, and that complies
with Accounting Standards in Australia, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, This includes
responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to
prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the sccounting policies and sccounting estimules inherent in the
financial repart.

Awlit approach

We conducted an independent avdit of the financial report in order o express an opinion (o the members of
the company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards i order to
provide reasonable assurance as 1 whether the financial repon is free of naterial misstatement. The natre
ol mn aedit 15 influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, (he inherot
limitations of intemal conrol, and the availabilivy ol persussive rather than conclusive evidenee,

Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements kave heen detected,

We performed procedures o assess whether in all material respeets the finaneial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting Standards in Australia,
and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which s consistent with our
understanding of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position, and of their performanee
as represented by the resulis of their operations and cash Hows.

We formed our audit opindon on the basis of these procedures, which included:

. examining, on a test basis, mformation to provide cvidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report; and

. asscssing the appropriatencss of the accounting policics and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors,

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on
internal controls.

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately reflected
n the inancial report. These and our other procedures did not include consideration or judgement of the
appropriaiencss or reasonab leness of the business plans or strategies adopted by the directors and
management of the company.

Independence

We are ndependent of the company and the consolidated entity and have met the mdependence
requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001, We have
given 1o the directors of the company a wrilten Auditor”s Independence Declaration.
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Ell ErNsT & YOUNG

Audit ppinion
In our opinion:

I the financial report of pSivida Limiled is m sccordance with:
() the Corporations Act 2001, includ ing:

(i} giving a truc and [air view of the financial position of pSivida Limited and the
consalidated entity at 30 June 2005 and of thoir performance for the year ended
on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Smndards in Australia and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

(bl other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.
QM'L - Z‘?
Ernst & Young

7 7,;//

V W Tidy

Partner

Perth

13 September 2005
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as at 30 September 2005

Additional infermation Included in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Australian Stock Exchange Limited. The infermation is
current as al 30 Seplember 2005,

1. Substantial shareholders

The names of substantial shareholders who had notified the Company in accordance with section 6718 of the Corporations

Act are:

GineliQ Limited 25,646,426 shares
Mr G J Reqos 11,291,282 shares
QinetiQ Group PLC 10,063,203 sharas

2. Statement of issued capital
{a) Distribution of fully paid ordinary shareholdars

Size of holding Number of holders Shares held
1- 1,000 REO 314,267
1,001 - 5,000 1,129 3,594,725
5,001 - 10,000 F01 5,802,745
10,001 - 100,000 1,086 36,057,849
100,001 and over 181 120,192,580

3686 225,962,166

(b} All ordinary shares (whether fully paid or not) carry one vote per share without restriction.
{c) At the date of this report there were 346 shareholders who held less than a marketable parcel of shares.

= Options
Exercise price Expiry date Number of MNumber of
options holders

Unlisted options $0.61 31 Dac 2007 4,375,000 9
Linlisted opticns $1.09 5 Aug 2008 2,050,000 2
Unlisted opticns $1.18 5 Aug 2009 9,054,713 27
Unlisted options $1.02 22 Apr 2010 200,000 1
Linlisted options F0.20 31 Dec 2008 115,000 2
Unlisted opticns $0.80 31 Mar 2010 3,177,000 29
Unlisted warrants US$12.50 5 Aug 2008 78,000 14

4. Guotation

Listed securilies in pSivida Limited are quoled on Lhe Australian Slock Exchange, NASDAQ and Frankfurl Stock Exchange.
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> Chairman’s Review

Twenty largest shareholders
The twenty largest shareholders hold 57.95% of the issued capital of the Company as at 30 September 2005,

Mo Shareholder Number of Percentage of

shares issued capital
1 AMZ Mominees Limited 42 289 888 18.72
2 Qinetit Limited 25,646 426 11.35
3 QinetiQ Group PLC 10,053,203 4,45
4 Mational Mominess Limited 5713174 2.53
5 Mr Roger Aston 5,618 586 2.49
9] Westpac Custodian Mominees Limited 4,493 970 1.99
7 Absolute Return Europe Fund 4 000,000 1.77
8 Prof Leigh Canham 3,900,579 1.73
9 Joanna Rezos 3,325,717 1.47
10 Morgrae Pty Ltd 3,110,000 1.38
11 Gavin Rezos & Joanne Rezos 3,069,333 1.35
12 Mr Jeremy Charles King 2,700,000 1.19
13 Aymon Pacific Pty Ltd 2,510,607 1.11
14 Citicorp Mominaes Ply Limited 2,409 563 1.07
15 Mr Gavin Rezos 2,395 625 1.06
16 Berkshire Momineas Pty Lid 2,785 ba8 1.01
17 Mr Cralg Bollomley 2,200,000 0.97
18  Mr David John Ledger 1,900,000 0.84
19 Mrs Jacqueline Anne Thomas 1,700,000 0.75
200 SGH Technology Venlures Pte Ltd 1,629,752 0.72

130,951 091

57.95
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